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2 messages

Janet Presquito <janetpresq@gmail.com> Thu, May 2, 2024 at 6:59 PM
To: ictdsubmission@sec.gov.ph

Cc: Cualoping Securities Corp <cualopingseccorp@yahoo.com>

Good day!

We are sending the attached report as per instruction received through EFAST - "fo re-submit the report as 52AR form
with FS".

Kindly acknowledge receipt.

" Thank you.

Janet Presquito - Ybariez
Mobile No. 09173225823

?}] CUALOPING_AFS 2023.pdf
= 5922K

ICTD Submission <ictdsubmission+canned.response@sec.gov.ph> Thu, May 2, 2024 at 6:59 PM
To: janetpresg@gmail.com

Thank you for reaching out to ictdsubmission@sec.gov.ph!

Your submission is subject for Verification and Review of the Quality

of the Attached Document only for Secondary Reports. The Official Copy
of the submitted document/report with Barcode Page (Confirmation
Receipt) will be made available after 7 working days via order through
the SEC Express at htips://secexpress.ph/. For further clarifications,
please call (02) 8737-8888.

NOTICE TO
COMPANIES

'Please be informed of the reports that shall be filed only through
ictdsubmission@sec.gov.ph.

Pursuant to SEC MC Circular No. 3 s 2021, scanned copies of the

printed reports with wet signature and proper notarization shall be

filed in PORTABLE DOCUMENT FORMAT (pdf) through email at
ictdsubmission@sec.gov.ph such as the following SECONDARY REPORTS:

1. 17-A 6. ICA-QR 11. IHAR 16. 39-AR 21. Monthly Reports
2.17-C7.23-A12. AMLA-CF 17. 36-AR 22. Quarterly Reports

3. 17-L 8. 23-B 13. NPM 18. PNFS 23. Letters

4,17-Q 9. GIS-G 14. NPAM 19. MCG 24. OPC (Alternate Nominee)
5. ICASR 10. 52-AR 15.BP-FCLC 20.S10/SEC-NTCE-EXEMPT

Further, effective 01 July 2023, the following reports shall be
submitted through https://efast.sec.gov.ph/user/login.



1. FORM MC 18 7. Completion Report

2. FORM 1 - MC 19 8. Certificate-SEC Form MCG- 2009

3. FORM 2- MC 19 9. Certificate-SEC Form MCG- 2002, 2020 ETC.

4. ACGR 10. Certification of Attendance in Corporate Governance

5. [-ACGR 11. Secretary's Certificate Meeting of Board Directors
(Appointment)

6. MRPT
Please be informed that the submission of the abovementioned eleven
(11) reports through the ictdsubmission@sec.gov.ph shall no longer be
accepted. For further information, please access this link Notice for
guidance on the filing of reports:

Likewise, the following reports shall be filed through the Electronic
Filing and Submission Tool (eFAST) at
https://efasi.sec.gov.ph/user/login :

1. AES 7. IHES 1 3:SSE
2. GIS 8. LCFS 14. AFS with Affidavit of No Operation
3. BDFS 9. LCIF 15. AFS with NSPO Form 1,2, and 3
4. FCFS 10. OPC_AO 16. AFS with NSPO Form 1,2,3 and 4,5,6
5. FCIF 11. PHFS 17. FS - Parent
' 6. GFFS 12. SFFS 18. FS — Consolidated

For the submission and processing of compliance in the filing of
Memorandum Circular No. 28 Series of 2020, please visit this link —
hitps:/fapps010.sec.gov.ph/

For your information and guidance.

Thank you.



BIR Form 1702-RT https://efps.bir.gov.ph/faces/EFPSWeb_war/forms2018Version/1702...

Reference No : 462400059200960
Date Filed : April 15, 2024 03:34 PM
Batch Number : 0

Republic of the Philippines
Department of Finance

For BIR BCS/
UseOnly:  Kem Bureau of Internal Revenue
BIR Form No. Annual Income Tax Return l'I
1702-RT For Corporation, Partnership and Other Non-Individual :
J 2018(ENCS Taxpayer Subject Only to REGULAR Income Tax Rate
a”“a“",age 1( ) Enter all required information in CAPITAL LETTERS. Mark applicable boxes with an "X".
Two Copies MUST be filed with the BIR and held by the t i
wo Copies e filed with the and one held by the taxpayer. 1702-RT 01/18ENCS P1
1 For Calendar () Fiscal |3 Amended Return? |4 Short Period Return? | ° /IPhanumeric Tax Code (ATC)
1C055 Minimum Corporate Income Tax (MCIT)
2 Year Ended (MM/20YY) Yes No Yes No
12/2023 ICO10 v |DOMESTIC CORPORATION IN GENERAL

Part | - Background Information
6 Taxpayer Identification Number (TIN) | 000 '-/333 -333 - 000 7 RDO Code| 049
8 Registered Name (Enter only 1 letter per box using CAPITAL LETTERS)
CUALOPING SECURITIES CORP

9A Registered Address (Indicate complete registered address)
UNIT 061 LEVEL 3 AYALA MALL CIRCUIT HIPPODROMO MAKATI CITY

9B Zipcode 1207

10 Date of Incorporation/Organization (MM/DD/YYYY) 03/07/1979
11 Contact Number 12 Email Address
7083229 cualopingseccorp@yahoo.com

13 Method of Deductions Itemized Deductions [Section 34 Optional Standard Deduction (OSD) - 40% of Gross Income [Section 34(L),
(A-J), NIRC] NIRC as amended by RA No. 9504]

[ Part Il - Total Tax Payable (Do NOT enter Centavos) |

14 Total Income Tax Due (Overpayment) (From Part IV Item 43) 0
15 Less: Total Tax Credits/Payments (From Part IV Item 55) 509,290
16 Net Tax Payable (Overpayment) (ltem 14 Less Item 15) (From Part IV Item 56) (509,290)
Add Penalties
17 Surcharge

18 Interest

19 Compromise

20 Total Penalties (Sum of Items 17 to 19) 0
21 TOTAL AMOUNT PAYABLE (Overpayment) (Sum of item 16 and 20) (509,290)

If Overpayment, mark "X" one box only (Once the choice is made, the same is irrevocable)

To be refunded To be issued a Tax Credit Certificate (TCC) To be carried over as tax credit next year/quarter

e declare under the penalties of perjury, that this annual return has been made in good faith, verified by us, and to the best of our knowledge and belief, is true and correct pursuant to the provisions of the
National Internal Revenue Code, as amended, and the regulations issued under authority thereof. (/f Authorized Representative, attach authorization letter and indicate TIN)

22 Number of

Signature over printed name of President/Principal Officer/Authorized Representative Signature over printed name of Treasurer/Assistant Treasurer Attachments
Tltle of N Tltle of N 4
Signatory Signatory

Part 1l - Details of Payment

Particulars Drawee Bank/Agency Number Date (MM/DD/YYYY) Amount
23 Cash/Bank Debit Memo 0
24 Check 0
25 Tax Debit Memo 0

26 Others (Specify Below)

1of6 4/20/2024, 10:19 AM
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Machine Validation/Revenue Official Receipts Details (if not filed with an Authorized Agent Bank)

Stamp of receiving Office/AAB and Date of
Receipt (RO's Signature/Bank Teller's Initial)

4/20/2024, 10:19 AM
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BIR Form No. |II
1702-RT c tion, P rtAﬂI:yaldlghCO':nel I‘a'): I?Tetum Subject Only t :
January 2018(ENCS) orporation, Partners IpRellEnGULAI:rIn::r;: -II_;I)I( ;:te axpayer Subject Only to I
Page 2
1702-RT 01/18ENCS P2
Taxpayer Identification Number (TIN) Registered Name
000 -333 -333 - 000 CUALOPING SECURITIES CORP
Part IV - Computation of Tax (Do NOT enter Centavos)

27 Sales/Receipts/Revenues/Fees 350,068
28 Less: Sales Returns, Allowances and Discounts 0
29 Net Sales/Receipts/Revenues/Fees (ltem 27 Less Item 28) 350,068
30 Less: Cost of Sales/Services 1,317,982
31 Gross Income from Operation (Item 29 Less Item 30) (967,914)
32 Add: Other Taxable Income Not Subjected to Final Tax 1,727
33 Total Taxable Income (Sum of Items 31 and 32) (966,187)
Less: Deductions Allowable under Existing Law

34 Ordinary Allowable ltemized Deductions (From Part VI 4.237 234

Schedule I Item 18) =

35 Special Allowable Itemized Deductions (From Part VI 0

Schedule II Item 5)

36 NOLCO (only for those taxable under Sec. 27(A to C);

Sec. 28(A)(1) & (A)(6)(b) of the tax Code) (From Part VI 0

Schedule III Item 8)

37 Total Deductions (Sum of Items 34 to 36) 4,237,234

OR [in case taxable under Sec 27(A) & 28(A)(1)]

38 Optional Standard Deduction (40% of Item 33) | 0 |
|39 Net Taxable Income/(Loss) (If ltemized: Item 33 Less ltem 37, If OSD: Item 33 Less Item 38) | (5,203,421) |
|40 Applicable Income Tax Rate H 25% |
41 Income Tax Due other than Minimum Corporate Income Tax (MCIT) (ltem 39 x Item 40) 0
42 MCIT Due (2% of Item 33) 0
43 Tax Due (Normal Income Tax Due in Item 41 OR the MCIT Due in Item 42, whichever is higher) 0
(To Part II Item 14)

Less: Tax Credits/Payments (attach proof)

44 Prior Year's Excess Credits Other Than MCIT 492,295
45 Income Tax Payment under MCIT from Previous Quarter/s 0
46 Income Tax Payment under Regular/Normal Rate from Previous Quarter/s 0
47 Excess MCIT Applied this Current Taxable Year (From Part VI Schedule 1V Item 4) 0
48 Creditable Tax Withheld from Previous Quarter/s per BIR Form No. 2307 5,704
49 Creditable Tax Withheld per BIR Form No. 2307 for the 4th Quarter 11,291
50 Foreign Tax Credits, if applicable 0
51 Tax Paid in Return Previously Filed, if this is an Amended Return 0
52 Special Tax Credits (To Part V Item 58) 0
Other Credits/Payments (Specify)

53 0
54 0
&

55 Total Tax Credits/Payments (Sum of Items 44 to 54) (To Part II Item 15) 509,290
56 Net Tax Payable / (Overpayment) (Item 43 Less Item 55) ) (To Part II Item 16) (509,290)

Part V - Tax Relief Availment

57 Special Allowable Itemized Deductions (ltem 35 of Part IV x Applicable Income Tax Rate) 0
58 Add: Special Tax Credits (From Part IV Item 52) 0
59 Total Tax Relief Availment (Sum of Items 57 and 58) 0

4/20/2024, 10:19 AM
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BIR Form No. |II
1702-RT c tion, P rf«nr:_ualdlcl;ltfo:nel '(lj'_a_)(: I?stum Subject Only t :
January 2018(ENCS) orporation, Partners IpRTEnGULAI:rIm?:%Z 'Il"a,;( I::te axpayer Subject Only to
Page 3
1702-RT 01/18ENCS P3
Taxpayer Identification Number (TIN) Registered Name
000 -333 -333 - 000 CUALOPING SECURITIES CORP
| Schedule | - Ordinary Allowable Itemized Deductions (Attach additional sheet/s, if necessary)
1 Amortizations 0
2 Bad Debts 0
3 Charitable Contributions 0
4 Depletion 0
5 Depreciation 157,050
6 Entertainment, Amusement and Recreation 0
7 Fringe Benefits 0
8 Interest 1,059,110
9 Losses 0
10 Pension Trust 0
11 Rental 270,308
12 Research and Development 0
13 Salaries, Wages and Allowances 1,401,937
14 SSS, GSIS, Philhealth, HDMF and Other Contributions 0
15 Taxes and Licenses 76,086
16 Transportation and Travel 158,487
17 Others (Deductions Subject to Withholding Tax and Other Expenses) [Specify below; Add additional
sheel(s), if necessary]
a Janitorial and Messengerial Services 0
b Professional Fees 197,000
¢ Security Services 0
d CONDOMINIUM DUES 284,882
e UTILITIES EXPENSE 240,078
f POSTAGE, TELEPHONE AND COMMUNICATION 99,235
g OFFICE SUPPLIES 59,005
h INSURANCE 53,380
i OTHERS 180,676
&
i.1 | REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE 18,705
i.2 | MEETING AND CONFERENCE 8,000
i.3 | SUBSCRIPTION AND PERIODICAL 3,225
i.4 | BANK CHARGES 1,583
i.5 | TRAINING AND SEMINARS 804
i.6 | MISCELLANEOUS 148,359
|18 Total Ordinary Allowable Itemized Deductions (Sum of ltems 1 to 17i) (To Part IV Item 34) | 4,237,234 |
| Schedule Il - Special Allowable Itemized Deductions (Attach additional sheet/s, if necessary) |
Description Legal Basis Amount
1 0
2 0
3 0
4 0
&
L ' ' ]
|5 Total Special Allowable Itemized Deductions (Sum of Items 1 to 4) (To Part IV Item 35) 0

4/20/2024, 10:19 AM
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BIR Form No. 4
1702-RT Annual Income Tax Return I||| mﬁg liﬁll |||
Corporation, Partnership and Other Non-Individual Taxpayer Subject Only to o
Januaﬂl’:iglsf"‘cs) REGULAR Income Tax Rate 1702-RT 01/18ENCS P4
Taxpayer ldentification Number (TIN) Registered Name
000 -333 -333 - 000 CUALOPING SECURITIES CORP
| Schedule lll - Computation of Net Operating Loss Carry Over (NOLCO) |
1 Gross Income (From Part IV Item 33) (966,187)
2 Less: Ordinary Allowable Itemized Deductions (From Part VI Schedule | Item 18) 4,237,234
3 Net Operating Loss(/tem 1 Less ltem 2) (To Schedule IIIA, Item 7A) (5,203,421)
Schedule IlIIA - Computation of Available Net Operating Loss Carry Over (NOLCO) (DO NOT enter Centavos; 49 Centavos or Less drop
down; 50 or more round up)

| Net Operating Loss |

B) NOLCO Applied Previous Year

| Year Incurred l A) Amount I
42023 5,203,421 0
52022 4,250,433 0
62021 2,589,409 0
72020 4,242,766 0
Continuation of Schedule llIA (tem numbers continue from table above)
. . E) Net Operating Loss (Unapplied)
C) NOLCO Expired D) NOLCO Applied Current Year [E=ALess(B+C+D)]
4 0 0 5,203,421
5 0 0 4,250,433
6 0 0 2,589,409
7 0 0 4,242,766
8 Total NOLCO (Sum of Items 4D to 7D) (To Part IV, 0
Item 36)
[Schedule IV - Computation of Minimum Corporate Income Tax (MCIT)
Year A) Normal Income Tax as adjusted B) MCIT C) Excess MCIT .?.;’fr Normal Income
12022 0 4,901 4,901
22021 0 61,991 61,991
3 0 0 0
Continuation of Schedule IV (Iltem numbers continue from table above)
. . . . G) Balance of Excess MCIT Allowable
D) Excess MC.:IT Applied/Used in E) Expired Portion of Excess MCIT F) Excess MCIT Applied this as Tax Credit for Succeeding Year/s
Previous Years Current Taxable Year _
[G=Cless(D+E+F)]
1 0 0 4,901
2 0 0 61,991
3 0 0 0 0
Total Excess MCIT Applied (sum of items 1F to 3F) (To Part IV Item 47) 0
Schedule V - Reconciliation of Net Income per Books Against Taxable Income (attach additional sheet/s, if necessary) |
1 Net Income/(Loss) per books (6,400,727)
Add: Non-deductible Expenses/Taxable Other Income
2 \UNREALIZED MARKET LOSS 4,524,230
3 OTHERS 294,527
&
3.1| DEPRECIATION OF RIGHT OF USE ASSET 240,012
3.2| CREDIT LOSSES 17,935
3.3| FINANCE COST RELATED TO LEASE LIABILITY 12,133
3.4| FINES AND PENALTIES 14,006
3.5| INTEREST EXPENSE 5,141
3.6| LOSS ON CONCESSION 5,300
4 Total (Sum of Items 1 to 3) (1,581,970)
Less: A) Non-Taxable Income and Income Subjected to Final Tax
5 DIVIDEND INCOME 3,224,558
6 OTHERS 396,893

50f6 4/20/2024, 10:19 AM
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&
6.1| ACTUAL RENT 270,308
6.2 | UNREALIZED FOREIGN EXCHANGE GAIN 106,022
6.3 | INTEREST INCOME 20,563

B) Special Deductions

7

8

&

9 Total (Sum of Items 5 to 8) 3,621,451

10 Net Taxable Income/(Loss) (Item 4 Less Item 9) (5,203,421)

4/20/2024, 10:19 AM



ALIMTING

PEREZ, SESE, VILLA & CO.

CERTFIED PURLIC ACCOAINTANTE

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT
TO ACCOMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR
FILING WITH THE BUREAL OF INTERNAL REVENLE

To ihe Board of Directers

CUALOPTNG SECURITIES CORPORATION
Limit 061 Level 3 Ayala Malls Circust,

Hipodroma Street Circult Makati

Przy. Carmona Makati City

We have audited the fmancial stalemcnis of CUALOPING SECURITIES CORPORATION for the
wear ended December 31, 2023, on which we lsave rendared the attached report dated Apnil 11, 2024

In compliance with Fevenue Regulation: Y-20, we are stating the follewing:

1. Tlhe taxes paid and nccroed by the above Compary fior the year ended December 31, 2023
are shown in the Schedule of Taxes and Licenses.

ki

Na partner of eur Firm is related by consanguinity o affinity to the presidens, manager of
principal sharcholders of the Company.

PEREZE, SESE, VILLA & CO.

CPA License Mo, 0054588
Tax Identification Mo, 212-955-173-000
PTR Ma. 15373625, lsswed on January 4, 2024, Manila Cily
SEC Acereditation Mo
Partner — 54588-SEC Group B, issoed on December 1, 2022,
valid for five {5) years covering the audit of 2022 o 2026 financial statements
Firmt — 0222-SEC, Group D, lsased on December 1, 2022,
valid for fiwe (3) vears covering the audit of 2022 to M6 financial statements
BIR Accreditation No. 04-003494- 1 -Z024, isgued on March 11, 2024
walid for three () years until March 10, 2027
I Accreditation No.
Pariner -54388-1C, Group B, issued on December 3, 20240
valid for five (5) vears covering the audit of 2020 w0 2024 financel statements
Firny -22-1C. Group B, Issued on December 3, 2020
valid for five (5) years covering the audii of Z0Z0 1o 2024 fisancial statements
BOAPRC Cert. of Reg. Mo, (222, issued on Octeber 13, 2023 valid until Oxtober 12, 2026

Manila, Philippios:
Apeil 11, 2024

ACCOUNTING — COMNSLILTAMNLY CINANCIAL ADVISORY — TAXKATION - BOCKEEFING ~— DUE EHLMGENCE



CUALOPING SECURITIES CORPORATION

FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2023 and 2022

amd

Report of Independent Auditors



REPFUBLIC OF THE PHILIFPINES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Metrn Maonila, Philippines

ANNUAL AUMTED FINANCIAL REFORT

Information Required of Brokers and Dealers Pursuznt 1o Rule 52.1-5 of the Securitics Regulstion
Code (5HRC)

Report for the Period Beginning Junuary 1, 2023 ard Ending December 31, 2023

IDENTIFICATION OF BROKER OR DEALER

Wame of Broker / Dealer: CUALOPING SECURITIES CORFORATION

Address of Principal Place of Business: Uit 061 Level 3 Avaln Malls Circuit ,
Hipaosd romo Street Circuit Makaii,
Brgy. Carmona Makati City

Mame ardd Phone Mumber of Ferson to Contact in Regard 1o thas Repor

Mame: JANET FRESQUITO Tel, Mo (02) TOR-3219%
Fax Mo

IDENTIFICATION OF ACCOUNTANT

Mame of Independent Certified Public Accountarnt whose opinion is contained in this report;

Mame: MlA. ALMA C. SESE Tel. M. H9r04-39R4
Fux Mo,
Address:  9th Floor Unit C Mare 2000 Tower, 1973 Taft cor San Andres,
Malate, Manils
Certificale Mumber: 54558

PTE Numbsr : 1533615 Drate Bssued: January 4, 2024




CUALOPING SECURITIES CORPORATION
TABLE OF CONTENTS

ANNUAL AUMTED FINANCIAL REPORT PACKAGE
DECEMBER 31, DS

Submilted
Coeer Page e,
Staiement of Management Respansibility X
Supplemencal Statement of Independent Auditors X
Repor of Independed Audiom an Supplementary Schedules
filed scparaicly from the Basic Financial Statements x
Repor of Independent Anditors X
Financisl Stmements:
Statements al Finameial Position X
Sratements of Comprehensive Income ¥
Sratements of Chasges in Eguity X
Sxatemests of Cwsh Fliovws X
Moles 1o Firancial Sirjemenis X
Supplementary Sisedules
Schedule 1 Saspzment of Changes in Lisbilities Sebordinaed
o Claims of Geneml Cralitess
Sededule 11 Computation of Risk Based Capital Adequacy per X
SR Rule £9.1-1
Schedule [1 Information Relating to Possession or Contral Requirements
Ussder Appendix F of SR Rule 49.2-1 X
Schobele IV Compesation of Determinstion of Reserve Requirements Under
Appendin O of SR Hule £9. 2] X
Schedule ¥ A Repart Desiribing any Matesial lmadegecies Found 1o
Exist or Foumd 0o Have Existed since the Frevioss Awdin X
Sehedul VI Fesults af Masthly Securities count comducied pursunnt o
SRC Rule $2.0-10 as of g Date of the Balance Sheet
Inchuded in the Annual Audited Fimancial Reponl Package X
Sehedule W1 Finameial Sowendndss Inddizanors X
Sehedule V11 Reconciliativn of Retssed Earnings Available for
Deividemds Dheclaraiion X




Cualoping Securities Corporation

Member: Philippine Stock Exchange, Inc.

STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY
FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The management of CUALOPING SECURITIES CORPORATION is responsible for the
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements including the schedules attached
therein, for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, in accordance with the prescribed
financial reporting framework indicated therein, and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative to do so.

The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

The Board of Directors reviews and approves the financial statements, including the schedules
attached therein, and submits the same to the shareholders.

PEREZ, SESE, VILLA & CO., the independent auditors appointed by the shareholders for the
years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively, have audited the financial statements of
the Company in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing, and in their report to the
shareholders, have expressed their opinion on the fairness of presentation upon completion of

such audit.
SANTIAGO S. CUA, JR. 72
Chairman of the Board
s,iMEON S. CUA GLENN NELSON M. MACAVINTA
President Treasurer

Signed this 11 day of April 2024.

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me, a Notary Public for and in the
MAKAT' GITY Philippines, this , affiants who are personally known to me and
‘whose identity I have confirmed through their competent evidence of identity bearing the affiants

-~ photograph and signature.
NAMES- - COMPETENT DATE AN UGB
Y . ORT
EVIDENCE OF IDENTITY A}I?IPE
00C NU-.._Eng‘ ;
PAGE NO. — Appointment No M-032 {2024-2625)
BOOKNG. X ~PTR N 10077908 Jar Z 2024 Makat: Cit
% = PO IRP-Ro-384338—an—3-2044-Rasig . Roi No 27932
SERICS OF = MCLE NO VIL0627570 lssued Aorii 3 2023

Unit 061 Level 3 Ayala Malls Circuit, Hippodromo St., Brgy. Carmona, Makati City 1207 © Exchange Nos. 7791-4378 * 7940.603210ﬁﬂﬁmm«ao{;aﬁmﬁm%em‘ﬂﬁm * §522-0293
Brgy Pic Del Pilar. Makati City




Cualoping Securities Corporation

wembir: Fhillppene Stk Exchangr, B

STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY
FOR ANNUAL INCOME TAX RETURN

The Management of CUALOPING SECURITIES CORPORATION is respomsible for all
infoemation and representations comtained in the Asnual Income Tax Returm for thve vear embed
December 31, 2023, Management is likewise responsible for all information and representalxans
comtained in the financial ststements accompanymg the Annoal Income Tax Return and Armual
Infarmation Retum covering the same reposting period, Furtlermore, the Managensent i reaponsible
fior all information and representations contained in all the other tax neturns fibed for the reporting
period, including, but nat limited, to the vale added tax returns, withholding tax retums, docamentary
stamp tax retarms, and any and all other tax returns,

I this regard. the Management affirms that the artached audited financial statements for the year cnded
December 31, 2023 and the accompanying Annual Income Tax Retarn are in accordance with the
books end records of CUALOPING SECURITIES CORPORATION compleie and correct in all
matirial respects, Management likewise affirms that:

(a) the Annual Income Tax Retum has been preparcd in nccordance with the provisions of
the National Istemal Revenue Code, as amended, and pertinent tax regulations and ather
issunnces of the Department of Fnance and the Bureau of Intemnal Revenue;

ih) amy disparity of figures in the submitted reports arising from the preparation of financial
siatements pursuant 1o Tinancial nccounting standards and the preparation of the Eneoms tax
returm pursnant to tax accounting rales has been reported a3 reconciling fiems and malntained in
the Company’s boaks and records in accordance with the requinements of Revenue Regulations
Mp 8-2007 and oiher relevant issuances;

{¢) the CUALOPING SECURITIES CORPORATION has filed all applicable fax refums,
reports and statements required to be filed under Philipping tax laws for the reporiing
period, and all taxes and other impesitions shown thereon to be due urd payable have been
pakd for the reporting period, except those contested in good faith,

BY:
CUALOPING SECURITIES CORPORATION 5

ANTIAGO 5. CUA, JR.
/&w Chatrmicn of the Board |_|!

SIMEDN 5. CUA GLENN NELSON M. MACAVINTA
President Treasurer

Wveir (] Taowgli 8 Asmia Ml Clremh, [Hppaatisias S, g, Carmess, Watan Chy 1207 ® Esduage ai TMII-SVTE T VR G0ET  Fal TISETITE 4w M TTRE-TI-00 T R4 16000



PEREZ, SESE, VILLA & CO.

CERTHFIED PUALIC ACCOUNTANTS

SUPFLEMENTAL STATEMENT OF
INDEPFENDENT AUDITORS

To the Board of Directars and Sharchalders
CUALOPING SECURITIES CORPORATION
Umit D61 Level 3 Ayaln Malls Circuit,

Hipodrome Stoea Cincusl Makati

Brgy. Cormona Maoknli l!_"il_:.-

We have audited the financeal statements of CUALOPING SECURITIES CORPORATION fo
the year ended December 31, 2023, on which we have rendered the attached report daded April 11,
2024,

In compliance with the Revised Securities Regulation Code Rule 68, we are stating that the said
Company has a todal number of seven {7) sharebolders owning one handred (1003 or more shares
each of the Company’'s Capital stock as of Decemsber 31, 2023, as disclosed in Note 21 of the
Fnancial Stalements

PEREZ, SESE, VILLA & CO,

BY: - ALMA C, SESE
AMAGING PARTHER

CPA License Mo, (054588
Tax ldentification Mo, 212055173000
PTR Mo, 1533623, lssued on Janwary 4, 2024, Mandla City
SEC Accredringion Mo
Partivsr — 54588-5EC Group B, issued on December 1, 2022,
valid for five (5) years covering the audil of 2022 1w 2026 Nnancial statements
Form — 0222-8EC, Group B, Issued on December 1, 2022,
valid for five (5) vears covering the audi of 2022 10 2026 financial statements
BIR Accreditation Mo, 04-003494- | -2024, issued on March 11, 2024,
valid for tlsree (3) vears until March 10, 2027
IC Accreditation Mo,
Partner =54 588-1C, Group B, issved on December 3, 2020
vahd for five (3) wears covering the audit of 2020 o 2024 financial stalements
Firm -0222-1C, Group B, issued on December 3, 2020
vahid for five (5) years covenng the andit of 2020 to 2024 financial stalements
BOAPRC Cert. of Reg. Mo, 0222, issued om October 13, 2023 valid until October 12, 2026

Manbe, Plulippiees
April 11,2024

AUDITING = ACCOLUNTING = COMNSLLTANCY = FINANCIAL ADVISORY = TAXATION - BOOKEEPING — DUE DILIGENCE




PEREY, SESE, VILLA & CO.,

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOLNTANTS

REFORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS
ON SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES

To the Board of Direciors and Sharcholders
CUALDPING SECURITIES CORPORATION
Limit 361 Level 3 Ayala Malls Circuit,

Hipesdramins Street Circuid Makar,

Hray. Carmona Makati City

We have audited the fisancial statements of CUALOPING SECURITIES CORPORATION for the
vear ended December 31, 2023 in accordance with Philippine Standards on Awditing on which we
herve remdenad an unqualilied opinion dated April 11, 2024, Our audit was conducted far the purpose
of forming an opinion on the basic fnancial stalements taken as a whole. The supplementary
schedules | to VIII, as required by the Securities and Exchange Commission under the Revised
Securities Regulation Code Rule 68, are presented for purpose of additionsl analvsiz and sre not a
required part of the hasic financial starements. Such information ane the nesponsibility of management
and have been subjected o the asbiting procedures applisd in our audits of thw basic financial
stalemenls and, in our epimion, are fairy stated in all matecial respects in relation o the basic financial
sLalements taken as a whole.

PEREZL, SESE, VILLA & ().

v (o
BY: A, ALMA C. SEEF
ANAGING PALTNER

CPA License Mo, 0054588
Tax Identification Wa, 212-955-| T3-000
PTR Me. 1533625, Issued on January 4, 2024, Manila City
SEC Accreditation No:
Partner — 54588-5EC Grawp B, ssued on December 1, 2022,
volid for five (3) years covermg the andit of 2022 0 2026 financial statements
Firm — 0222-8EC, Group B, Issued on December 1, 2022,
valid for five (3) years covering the audit of 2022 to 2026 financial statements
BIE Accreditation Mo, (MAW03204- 13024, issued on March 11, 2024,
valid fir three {3 ) yvears uwtil March 10, 2027
IC Accreditation No.
Partner -34588-1C, Group B, isswed an December 3, 2020
valud for five (3) years covering ihe audit of 2020 to 2024 financial statements
Firm -0222-1C, Groug B, ssued on December 3, 200240
valid for five (5) wears covering the awdit of 2020 to 2024 financial statements
BOAPRC Cert. of Reg. No. 0122, isswed on Coteber 13, 2023 valid until October 12, 2026

Maaila, Philippines
April 11, 2024,

ALDITING = ACCOUNTING - CONSULTANCY — FINANCIAL ADVISORY — TAXATION - BOOKEEPING — DUE DILIGENCE




PEREZ, SESE, YILLA & CO.

CERTEFED PUBLIC ACCOUINTANTS

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

To the Board of Directors and Sharehobilers
CUALOPING SECURITIES CORPORATION
Unit (61 Lewel 3 Avala Malls Circwit,

Hipedroms Street Circoit Makai

Begy. Cormona Makati City

Report on (ke Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinin

We have audited the Gnancial statements of CUALOPING SECURITIES CORPORATION
{ihe Company), which comprise the statements of linancial position as at December 31, 2023 and
2022 and the statements of comprehensive income, statéments of changes in equity and
statements of cash Mows for the years then ended, and notes to the financial statements, incloding
material accounting policy information

In pur opanica, the accompanying financial stalements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Company as at December 31, 2023 and 2022 and its financal
performance and its cash fows for the years then ended in nccordance with Philippine Financial
Reporting Standards (FFRS).

Risin for Opinion

We condscted our audit in accordance with Philippine Standards on Awditing {PSAs) Our
respanathilities under thase standards are further deseribed in the Audirors” Responsibiilities for
the Anl of the Finanoial Statenreats section of our repor. We are independeat of the Club in
accaordance with the Code of Eihies for Professionnl Accountants in the Philippines (Code _ul'
Ethics) topether with the ethical requirements thal are relevant to our andit of the financial
statements in the Philippines, and we bave fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordancs
with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
abiained is sufficient and appropriste to provide a basis for cur opinion.

Resporsibilitles of Munagemem and Those Chorged with Govermance for the Fimmnclal
Srrenmenis

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
socordance with PFRS, and for such internal contrul as mapagement determines is necessary 1o
enahle the preparation of financial statements that are frec from materiol misstatement, whether
due 1o fraud or ereor.

In preparing the financial statements, management s responsible for assessing the Company's
ability 1o continue as going concemn, disclosing, %3 applicable, matters related to going concem
and using the going concern hasis of accounting unless management either intends 1o Hguidate the
Company ar cease operations, of has no realistic alemative bul 1o do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial neporting
process.

AUCETING — ACCOLNTING = COMNSULTANCY = FINANCIAL ADVISORY — TAXATION - BOOKEEPING — DUE DILIGENCE




Anatitars " Responsitdlities for fhe Audit of te Finapciol Soiedements

Char objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements ns 2
whiole ase free from material misstatensent, whether due to fraud or errer, aml 10 isee an asditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reosonable assurnnce is a high level of assurance, but is not a
paarantee that an aodit conducted in accordance with PSAs will always detect a materinl
misstaremsent when it exists. Misstntements can arise from froud or error and are conaidered
mterind i, mdividually or in the aguregate, they could reasonably be expected to influsnce the
economic decisions of wsers tken on the basis of these financeal statensents.

As part of an sudil in accordance with I'5As, we exercise professional judgment und maintain
prafessional skepticism throughowt the awdit. W also:

+ ldentify and nssess the risks of material misstutement of the lisancial statements, whether due
to frawd or error, design and perfoom awsdil procedures responsive (o those risks, and obtain
aundit evidence that is sufficient and spprogriate o provide a basis for our opinion, The nisk of
mot detecting a material misstatemant resualting from friod is higher than for one resulting from
errar, a5 fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, o the
averride of internal control.

# Obtain an wnderstanding of termal conlzal relevant 1o the awdit in order to design nucht
procedures that are appropriste in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectivensss of the Company™s internal control.

# Evaluate the appropriateness of sccounting polsies used and the reasonableness of accounting
catimares and reloved disglosures mnde by management.

» Conclude on the appropnateness of management’s use of the jpoing concern hasis of
accounting, and based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a matenal uncertainty exists
related to cvents or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue a5 a going concern, [T we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
10 draw attention in cur auditar”s report to tlse related disclosures in the finuncial statements or,
if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify aur opinien. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up 1o the date of cur auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company 1o cease 1o Coutinug as a going concem.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, mcluding
e disclosures. and whether the financinl statements repeesent the undedying transactions amd
events in a manner that achieves fiir presentation,

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other mattess, the
plonned scope and timing of the audit and significant andit findings, including any significant
deficienches in internal controf that we identify during cur audit.



Report on Cether Lepal and Bepulwtory Regoiremenis

Omir audit were conducted for the purpose of farming an opinicn on the basic financial statements
taken os 0 whole, The supplementary information for the year ended Deseber 31, 2023 required by the
Burean of Intemal Bevenue as disclosed in Mote 34 to the financial statements s presented for
purposes of additional anabysis and 15 nol a required part of the basic financial statements prepared in
accordance with PFRS. Such supplementary information is the responsibility of management. The
supplementary information has been subjocted to the auditing procedures appleed in the audit of the
basic financinl statements amd, in our opinion, is Gy sated @oall matereal respects in relation to the
basic financial statenents faken as a whale,

PEREZ, SESE, VILLA & CO.

Aot (s

BY: ALMA C, E
‘/z-.:;'-l.ﬂnﬁlﬂﬂ PARTNER

CrA License Mo, DI54588
Tax |demtification Mo, 212-955-173-000
PTR Mo 1533625, lssoed on January 4, 2024, Manila City
SEC Accreditation Mo:
Partner — 54588-SEC Group B, isswed on December 1, 2022,
valid for five (5) vears covering the awdit of 2022 1o 2024 financial statements
Firm — 0222-5EC, Groap B, [ssued on December 1, 2022,
valid for five (5) venrs covering the audit of 2022 1o 2026 financial statements
BIR Accreditation MNo. 04-003494-1-2024, issued on March 11, 2024,
valid for three (3) years until March 10, 2027
IC Accreditation M.
Parmer =54 388-1C, Group B, isswed on December 3, 2020
valid for five (5) vears covering the awdit of 20020 b 2024 Ninancial slatemems
Firm -0222-1C, Group B, issued on December 3, 2000
valid for five (5) years covering the audit of 2020 1o 224 financial statements
BOA/PRC Cert. of Reg. No, 0222, isswed on October 13, 2023 valid until October 12, 2026

Mamila, Philippines
April 11,2024
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CUALOPING SECURITIES CORPORATION

STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Eoe e Years Ended Decomber 31, 2023 gng 2022

Mares ZIpS 2022
IMNCOME
Comimissicn indnms a2 B M50 P 1594659
Divadend incoeme 4710 3,224,558 3,208 581
Claii on s=ale of financial ssseis ot FYPL, nel i 4 Bbil BE_ 31
Uinrealized Joss on ficancial assete 31 FVPL, nes 47 (4,524,230 (2,904,536
Toial (0, B0 1,985, 7
DIRECT Ci¥sTS 4. 23 (1,307,982} (1,192,734}
GROSS INCOME (L{SS) (2,267.506) TUs 0T
OPERATING EXPENSES 1.4 14, DREDGEF) 12-.1"6':].[!:':-]]
INCOME (LOSS) FROM OPERATION 15,452 655) (2, e, 1)
OTHER INCOME 4,25 1XR.312 L 18,34
FINAMCE COSTS 4 KL (1076 384) (5949, 358]
MET INCOME (LOS5) BEFDRE INCOME TAX (6. 408,727) (3,758,591}
INCOME TAX BENEFITS 427
Cuirrend - 4.901
Deferned (1, 344,352) {TA95T)
{2,344,3512) {T46,056)
NET INCOME (LOSS) FOR THE YEAR (4,056,175} (300 2935)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCONE {LOSS)
Ieeria shat will naot be reclussified
subseguenily lo profit or loss £ fon 28
Changes in fair value of available for sale financinl assets I 448,000 (11,628,000)
Tax effect {12,000 2,907 00
(R T A ] [B.T21 .M

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LU¥sS

{Sre acromnamar Vedts i Fiaseeio Sioteenis}

F ﬂ.,ﬂl,]-'.l'.'!! F ! I 1,733.'5'35!



CUALOPING SECURITIES CORPORATION

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
For i Years Endea Decentber 31, 2023 and 2022

Nwea 1023 2032

SHAKRE CAPITAL 4.2

Balaise at Langinaing of the year r SIS0 P S5,250, 004

I=sunnece 1 AHKI, D

Balance ot end of the year 56,250,000 55,250,000
REVALUATION INCREMENT i 2

Balancs &1 boginming of the year 28, dibd 400 AT, 185,400

Uther comprehensive Income (lass) or the year 1L A6, 0 (5,721,000

Balance at end of the year SO0 2R.464 400
RETAINED EARNINGS 4,21
Unappropristed

Balanee #t beginning of the year 4,676,467 7680 402

Mgt imeome (Inss) for the vear (40563 75) (3,002,935}

Appropriaticn for the year per SRC Rubs 49,1

Ealanee al ¢nd of the vear 020,147 d 676,467
Appropriated

Balsnce al beginning of the year 4,012,275 4,002,275

Appropristion for the year per SRC Rule 49.1 -

Balanee ol end of the year 4,002,275 4,002,275
Tutal Retained Earnings 4,632,367 &648, 142
TOTAL EQUITY F 91,182,767 B 92 403,142

e = —

(ot scavmrramedngr Modtar fo Soancial Seanseeiig




CUALOPING SECURITIES CORPORATION

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For e Virr Erved Devember 2], 2021 gmd 2077

i 20 AT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Wil lias before wax P (400,727 * 3,75E 1)
Adjustment oo reconcibe net [oss to
Met cash provided by aperaling activites:
Dh:preciation amd amerlization 4005 [570E0 144, 601
Prepriciation om RO ¥.5.24 2d0,p2 2400012
Finsnee costs on kase lishilio: 478 12,133 26,713
Firmnce cosls on mongnge payable 4,20 1,064,251 el L
Unrealized Ioss on financial asser ar FVIPL J4r L5140 T
Unrealized foecipn vnchange (gaing loss 425 RS T} {T1A4T)
Mividend revenus 4.r (3,224 558) 13,253,531
Imeresi income 4008 (20,563) (18,505
Operating boss before changes in working capital 184,10 (2,860,121)
Decrease (Increase) in:
Financial assel &1 fair value through prodil or loss 47 - (F13650)
Recelvables from customers and other brokers, net d5F 1363573 {951,547)
CHker receivohles 459 £ s Il 68d
Frepaymeents and olhir current asseis 4517 (144,401} [ 113,930)
lncreaze (Decreaze) in:
Payakde I customers £, 04 304,104 52 B4
Payabie 1 ¢learing house €417 CLRERT) 5500
Ober pryablis i1k {95.808) {44.227)
Cither current lighilities N '.",EE-L 18,554
Cash provided by {used in) operations O, 130 (3,456,200
Inionest received 46,75 20,563 18,564
Dividend received {7 A, 114,558 3,M0E.5E0
Inerest paid £.20.18 (1.076,384) (999,158}
Income tax paid 417 {17395} {4,901}
et caxh provided by (used in) opersting activities 111,469 (1133, 5949
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Paymem of refindable deposli 4513 (1,545} (3115}
Acquisition nl'iulmlgil:llu s 4504 (TS 114} { T2 e
Met cash used in investing sciiviries i 76,45 (75,828)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from e izsuance of shares £ 00D, -
Paymnes for lease Fability 425 (253,575) (233,295)
Payment of moripage pavable 420 (2, TH0. ) {2680, 84%)
Wet cash used in finamcing activities (2,022,935 (2,919, 144)
NET INCREARE (BPECREASE) 1N
CASH ANDCASH EQUIVALENTS i ovs £, 17E Ty
EFFECTS OF FOREN: N EXCHAMGE
ON CASH AND CASH EQUIYALENTS i 022 73,447
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR LE TR 405 16, 4] 345
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT THE ENDNOF THE YEAR LM F Il'.l'.iﬁ_-ldﬁni

e srcompormang Kkt fe Frovsad Sava s



CUALOPING SECURITIES CORPORATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 2013 and 2022

NOTE 1 - GENERAL INFUORMATICNN

CUALOPFING SECURITIES CORPORATION, (the Conpany) is a corporation registered with
the Philippine Securitses and Exchange Commasaion under registration namber 34870 dated March
g, 1979, The Company shall engage primarily in the bonds and other Nnancial securities and all
activities directly ans imdirectly comected therewith of indicated thercto, and to be a member of
amy stocks or commodity exchange, as well as boards of realors, national, regional or local,

Cin March 22, 2019, the Company's Board of Directors approved the amendment of its Articles of
Incorporation clanging its registered principal place of business from 1765 P.M, Guazon Street,
Pago, Manila, Philippines to LO3 U6 1 Ayala Malls Circuit, Hippodromao St Brgy. Carmona Makati
City, This was approved by the Securities and Exchange Commnuission on July 26, 2019,

Approval of the Finamedal Statement

The financial statements of the Company for the vear ended December 31, 2027 inclxling ils
camparative fgures for te year ended December 31, 2022 were npproved and nuthorized for imsue
bry the Board of Directors (BOHD) on Aprl 11, 2024,

NOTE 2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION

Seasenient of Complinnce

The financial sistements have been prepared in compliance with Philippine Financial Reporiing
Standards (PFRS) issued by the Philippine Financial and Sustainability Reporting Standards
Council {foemerly Philippine Financial Reportimg Standards Coeuncil) This financial reporting
framework includes PERS, Philippine Accountmg Standards (PAS) and Philippines inderpretations
from Imternational Financial Reporting Interpretations Committes (IFRICY and adopted by the
Securities and Exchangs Commission (SEC), inchsding SEC pronouncement.

Bazis af Preparation and Measarement

The Company has prepared the financial statements as at and for the year ended December 31, 2023
and 2022 on a going concern basis, which assumes continuity of cussent business activities and the
renlization of assels and sstlements of [abilities in the ordinary course of business,

They are presented in Philippine Feso which is the Company”s functional and presentation currency.
All amwouands are rounded to the nearest peso.

Ihe financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis, unless stated otherwise.

Historical coat is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods
and services,

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid 1o transfer a liabality in an
orderty transaction between market participants a1 the measurcment date, regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated nsing another valuation technigue. In estimating the fir
value of an asset or a linhility, the Company takes into account the characteristics of the assel or
liahiligy if market participasts would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset
or linbility at the measurement date.
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For financisl reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorized into Level 1, 2 or 3 based
an the degree 1o which the inpats to the fair value measurcments are observable and tic sl lcance
of the inputs i the fair value measurement in its entirety; which are described as fallows:

¢ Level | ingudts are guoted prices {unadjisted) in active markets for sdentical assets o
liabilities that the Company can acoess at the measureinent date:

* lLevel 2 inputs are inputs, vdher than quoted prices included within Level |, that are
abservable for the asset or liability. either directly or indirectly; and

*  Level 3 inputs are unobsecvable inputs for the assel or liability.
MOTE 3 = ADOPFTION OF NEW AND REVISED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

The accounting policies adopled are consistent with those of the previcus financial year, except for
the adoption of the following new and amended PFFRS which the Company adopled =ffective for
annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2023,

Unless otherwise indicated, the adoption of the new and amended PFRS did not have any material
effect on the financial statements, Additional disclosures kave hesn included in the motes [T
financial sestements, as applicable.

*  Amendments t0 PAS [, Preventation of Finarciol Sratements. and PFRS Praclice
Statement 2, Making Materiality Judgments - Disclovare Initiative - Accownting Policies -
The amendments require an entity (o disclese its material accounting policies, instead of its
significant accounting policies and provide guilance on how an entity applies the cancept
of materiality in mnking decisions shout accounting policy disclosures, In nssessing the
materiality of necounting policy information, entities need 1o consider both the sire of the
tramsactions, olber events or conditions amd its natere. The amendments clarify {1} that
accounting policy information may be material because of its nature, even if the related
amounts are immaterial, (2) (hol accounting policy information is material if users of an
ety s financial statements woukd need it to understand other materzal information in the
financial statements, and (3} il an entity discloses immaterial accounting policy
information, such information should not obscure materinl nccounting policy information.
In addlition, PFRS Practice Statement 2 is amended by adding puidance and examples 1o
explain and demanstrate the application of the ‘four-step materiality process” i acooanting
policy information.

*  Amendments to PAS 8, decounting Policies, Champes it Accowmting Estinveates and Ervors
- Definition of Accounting Fxtimares - The amendments clarify the distinction between
changes in accounting estimates and changes in sccounting palicies, and the cormection of
errors, Uinder the sew delinition, accounting estimates are “monetary nmounts in financial
statements that are subject o measurement uncentainty™. An entity develops an nccouiting
estimate if an accounting policy requires an item in the financial statements ta be measared
in & way that involves measurement uncertainty. The amendments clarify that a changs in
accounting estimate that results from new information or new developments is not a
carmeetion of an error, and that the effects of a change in an input or & measurement
technique used to develop an sccounting estimate are changes in sccounting estimates if
they do not result from the cormection of prior period emrors, A change in an accaunting
eslimate may affect only the profit or loss in the current period, or the profit or loss of hath
the current and future perinds.

*  Amendments to PAS 12, fncome Taxes - Deferred Tar Reloted Assets and Liobilities from
i Single Tronvaciion ~ The amendments require companies to recognize deferred tax on
transactions that, on initial recognition, rive rise to equal amounts of taxahle and deductible
temporary differemces.
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Amendments to PAS 1, Classification of Liabkilities as Current or Nomcurrent — The
amendments clarify the requircments for an entity to have the right to defer settlement of
the liability for al least 12 months after the reponting period. The amendments also specify
and clarify the following: (i) an entity's right 1o defer setthemsent must exist of the ead af
the reporting period, (i) the classification is unaffected by management’s intenticas or
expectations about whether the entity will exercise its right 1o defer settbemend, (i) how
lending conditions affect classification, and {iv) requirements for classifving |sabilities
where an entity will or may settle by isuing its own equity instruments.

Amendments 1o PAS 12, Inernationad Tie Noform - Pillar Two Mode! Bules — The
amendements provide a mandatory temporary exemption for the accounting of the deferred
taces arising from the implementation of the Organization for Ecanomic Co-operation and
Develapment (OECDHGI0 Inclusive Framework on Base Erosion and Profit Shitting Pillar
Two model rules (Pillar Two income taxes). The amendments also infroduce the disclosure
requirements for the nffected entithes to enable users of the financial statements undecstand
the extent to which an entity will be affected by the Pillar Two inconse taxes, particularfy
before its effectivity date.

Relevant new and amended PFRS and PIC issuances, which are mof vei effective as at
Lrecember 31, 2023 and have not been applied in preparing the financial satements, are summarized

bedow,

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2024;

Amendments to PFRE 16, learer - Lease Lighiliny in o Sale and Leaseback — The
amendments clarify that the liability that arives from a sale and leaseback transnction, that
satisfies the requirements in PFRS 15, Revermue from Comtrocts with Customers, to he
acoounted for &s a sabe, is a lease linbility to which PFRS 16 applies and give rise to a right-
of-use assetd, For the subsoquent mensurement, the selber-lessee shall defermine “Jeass
paymients” or ‘revised lease payments” in a way that the seller-lossee would not recognize
aEy amount of ihe gain or loss that relates to the right of use retained by the seller-lessee,
Applying this subsequent measurement does not prevent the seller-lessee from recognizing
any ynin or koss relating to the partinl or full termination of a lease. Any gain or loss relating
1o the partial or full termination of the lease does sot relate to the right of use retained but
to the right of use terminated, The amendments must be applied retrospectively. Earlier
application is permiteed.

Amendments to PAS |, Moncwrremi Liabilities with Covenamir - The amendments ¢ lsrifid
that covenants to be complied with after the reporting date do ned affect the classification
of debt as current or noncurrent ot the reporting date. Instead, the amendments reguire the
entity to disclose Informsation about these covenants In the notes 1o the financial statements.
The amendments must be applied retrospectively. Earlier application is permithed,  [f
applied in earlier period, the Company shall also apply Amcndments 10 PAS | -
Classificarion of Liobilittes ay Cirrent or Norewrrent for that period.

IFRIC Agenda Decision (ver Time Transfer of Constructed Goods (PAS 23, Borrowing
Cost) for the Real Estate Indussry — In March 2019, IFRIC published an Agenda Decision
on whether barrowing costs can be capitalized on real estate inventores that are under
construction and for which the relaied revenue B'will be recognized over time under
paragragh 35(c) of International Financial Reporting Standards 15 (PFRS 15). IFRIC
conchuded that borrowing cosls cunnot be capitalized for such real estate invertories os they
do net meet the definition of gualifving asset under PAS 23 consiclering that these
inventorves e reacly for their intended sale in their corrent condition.
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On December 15, 2020, the SEC issusd SEC MC Na, 14, Sories of 2000, which exiends
the relief on the application of the IFRIC Agenda Decision provided to the real estate
industry unil December 31, 2023,

PIC Q& A T018-12-0, PFRS 13, Implementing Doswes Affecting the Real Extose fnclusiry
fax amended by PIC (%A 20004 — On December 15, 2020, the SEC iswued
SEC MC Mo, 34-2020 providing relief to the real estste indlusiry by deferring the
application of “nssessing if the transaction price includes a significant financing component
as discussed in PIC QA 2018-12-D (with an addendum in PIC QA 2020-041" umtil
December 31, 2023,

PIC Q&A 2018-12-E, Treamen: of Land in the Determination of the POC - The PIC QfA
clarified that the cost of the land should be excluded in measuring the POC of perfiarmance
obligation und should be accounted for ns fulfillment cost.

U December 13, 20240, the SEC issued SEC MC No. 34-2020 providing relief 1o the real
eataie imdusiry by deferring the application of “exchusion of land in calculation of POC as
discussed in PIC Q&A 2018-12-E" antil December 31, 2023.

Amendments 1o PAS 7, Sofemens of Cavh Flows and PFRS 7, Firemeial fnnremens;
Disclosures - Suppller Fiaonce Areangements — The amendments introduced new
disclosure requirements to enable wsers of the financial statements assess the effects of
supplier finance arrangements on the lisbilities, cash fows and exposwre to Nguidity risk.
The amendments also provide transitional relief on certain aspects, particularly on the
disclosures of comparutive information. Earlier application is permitted.

Effective for annaal periods beginning on or after January 1, 2025:

Amendments w PAS 21, The Effeces of Changer i Foreign Evchange Rares « Lack of
Exchamgeaiility — The amendments clarify when a currency is considered exchanpeable
imto another currency and how an entity determines the exchange rate for curmencies that
Inck exchangeability. The amendments also introduce new disclosure requirements 1o help
users of finuncial statements assess the impact when a currency is not exchangenble. An
entity does nat apply the smendments retrospectively. Instead, an entity recognizes any
effect of initially applying the amendments as an adjustment to the opening halance of
redained eamnings when the entity reports foreign currency transactions. When an entity nses
i presentation curreacy other than fs functional currency, # recognizes the cumulative
amount of translation differences in oquity. Earlier application is permitied.

PFRS 17, fnswrawce Contracis— This standard will replace PFRS 4, Josurance Confrocty.
It requeres insurance lisbilities to be measared af current fulfillment vales and provides a
mare unifonm measurenent and presentation approach 1o achieve consistent, principle-
based accounting for all insurance contracts. It also requires similar principbes 1o be applied
to reinsurance contracts held and investment contmets with discretionary participation
features issued. An amendment to the sandard was issued to (i) reduce casts of tranzition
by simplifying some requinements of the standard, (i) make financial performance snsier
tey excpliin, and (i) ease transition by deferring the sffectivity of the standard from 2021 to
2023 and by providing additional relief to reduce the effont required when applying PFRS
|7 far the first time.

In response to the challenges brought by the COVID-19 pandemic, the Insuramce
Commission issued Circular Letter 2020-062, dmendiient of Section | of Cirewlar Letter
No. 2008-6%, Deferral of IFRS I'7 fmplementation, which provides a two-vear deferral on
the implementation of the standard from the 2023 effectivity date. Therefore, all life and
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nonlile insurance companies in the Philippines shall adopt PFRS 17 for annual periods
heginning on or after Jonuary 1, 2025,

* Amendment o FFRS 17, Insurance Comiracty - faitial Appdication of PFRS 17 and PERS
P - Comparative igformarion— The amendment adds a transition option for 5 “clasaifcation
overlay™ to address temporary accounting mismalches between financial assets and
insurance contract liabilitics relsting o comparative information presented on the initial
application of PERS 17, If an entity elects to apply the classification overlay, it can only do
50 for comparative periods to which it applics PFRS 17 Mo amendments have been made
to the transition requirements of PFFRS 9.

Deferred effectivity -

*  Amendments to PFRS 10, Comsofidared Financial Suvemenss, and PAS 78 - Sale or
Contribution of Aswers Beraeen an Investor and ity Assoctate or Joint Vemsure — The
amendments address a conflicting provision under the vwo standards. It clarifies that a gain
or boss shall be recognized fully when the transaction invalves a business, and partially il
it involves assets that do not constitute a business. The effective date of the nmendments,
initinlly set for amnual periods beginning on or afler January 1, 2016, was deferred
inefindtely in December 2015 but earlier npplication & still permitted.

Under prevailing circumstances, the adoption of the feregoing new and amended PFRS and PIC
issuances is e expected 10 have any material effect on the linancial statemenis of e Company.
Additional disclosures will be incloded in the financial statements. as applicable,

NOTE 4- SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The material acoounting policies that have been used in the preparation of these financial statements
are summarized below. These accounting policies information are considered materinl beenuse of
its amounts, nature and related amounts. These are material in understanding material information
in the financial statement. These policies have been cansissently applied to all the vears presented,
unless otherwise stated

Financial Instrumenis
Twdidvl recogaition and mesareaent

Financial assets and linancial linbilities are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instransent,

Financial assets and financial liabilites are initially measured a1 fair value. Transaciion costs that
ary directly ateributable to the acquisition or issuance of financial assets and financial linbilities
(other than financial asscts and financial linbilities an fair value through profit or losg) are sdded 10
or dbeliscled from the fair value of the financial assets or financial lizhilities, as appropriate, on
mitial recognition. Tramsaction costs directly sttributable to the nequisition of finencial assets or
fimancinl linbilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognized immedintely in profit or loss.

Cievsificmsioer

The Company classifies its linancind assets at initial recognition under the following categories: (1)
linancial assels ot FVPL, (b) financial sssets at amortized cost and (¢} financial assets ot fair valoe
through olher comprehensive income (FVOCL).,  Financial liabilities, on the other hand, are
classified as cither financial liahilities ot FVYPL or financial labilities at amortized cost.  The
classification of a financial assets largely depends on the Company's business model and its
comtractaal cash flow characteristics
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Fimmrcial Axvers and Liabilities at FVPL

Financial aseets ared lisbilities 3t FYPL are either clussified as held for trading or designated =t
FVPL.

This cawegory includes equity instruments which the Company had not irrevocably elected 1o
classify at FVYOCH at initind recognition. This eatepory includes debt instruments whese cash flows
are wot “sabely for payment of principal and interest™ assessed at initial recognition of the assets, or
which are oot beld within o business modsl whaose chjective is either to collect contractanl cash
Mo, or fo both colled comtracmal cash Nows and sell

The Company may, at initial recognition, desipaate a financial asset or financial lability meeting
Ul covteria fo be classified at amortized cost or at FVOCL as a financinl nsset or financial lability
al FVPL, if dedng so eliminates or significantly reduces accounting mismatch that would arise from
measuring these nssets or linbilities.

After initial recognition, finuncial assets at FWPL and held for trading financial liabilities are
subsequently measured at fair value. Unrealized gains or losses arising from the fair valustion of
financial assets at FVPL amd held for trading fmancial lisbilities are recognized in peofit or loss.

For financiol liabilities designated &t FVPL under the fair value option, the amount of change in fair
valse that is attributable fo changes in the credit risk of that lability s recognized m other
comprebensive income {rather than in peofit or kss), unless this creates an accounting mismatch.
i“mu.'uulu presented in ather comprehensive income are ol subsequently transherred (o profit or
G

As al December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Company's financial asset at FVPL is presented in Mote 7,
Faanclal Asseis ol Amortized Cosr
Financial assets shall be measured at amortized cost if bath of the following conditicas are met:

® the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is o hold financial assets
in onder 1o collect comructumsl cash ows aml

®  the contractual terms of the financial asses give rise, on specified dates, to cash Mlows that are
solely payments of principal and mtemnest on the principal amount oustending,

After imitial recognition, financial assels af amoriized cost are subsequently measured at amostized
cost using the effective interest method, less nllowance for credit losses, if any. Amortized cost s
caleulated by taking e account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees that are an
integral pant of the effective interest rate. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the
financiol nssets are derecognized ard throuph amartization process,

Az at December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Compary's cash and cash equivalents, receivables from
custorners amd other brokers, other receivables and refundable deposits are classified under this
category (Notes 6, B, % and 15).

Cash in banks are demond deposits with banks and eam interest at prevailing bank deposit rages.
Meanwhibe, cash equivalewts are shon-term highly Bquid mvestments that are readily converiible
into known amounts of cash, which are subject to an insipnificant risk of changes in value and
which have 2 maturity of three (3) months or less ot scquisition,
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Firanciol Assels ar FVOCL

For debl instruments that meet the contraciual cash flow characterstic and are not designated at
FWPL under the fair value option, the financial assets shall be measured st FVOC! if bath of the
following comditions an: met;

#  the finsncial asset s held within a buginess model whase ohjective is 1o bold financial assets
in order to collect contractisal cach flows and selling the financial assets; and

®  lhe contractual terms of the financial asset give rise, on specificd dates, wo cash Alows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding

For equity instruments, the Company may irrevocably designate the financial asset fo be measured
at FYOC] as long ns these are nof Beld for trading purposes,

After initial recogniticn, Financial assets ot FYOC] are presented in the financial statements at fair
value with changes in fair value are recognized in OCL

[nterest income on dedi instruments is calculated wsing the effective nterest method while credit
Insses on debt instruments measured at FYOCH are recognized directly in prodit or loss, When the
fimancial assel is derecognized, the cumulstive gams or losses previously recognized in OCH are
reclassified o profit o lnss,

Dividends from equity instruments beld at FVOCT are recognized m profit or boss when the right to
receivie payment is established. Cumulative changes in fair value of FVOCT equity instraments are
recopnized in equity and are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods,

As at December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Company™s financial assets classified as FVOCT in
presented in Mote 10,

Filnancial Linhkides ar Amortized Cost

Financial liabilitses are categorized as financial liabilities al amortised cost when the substance of
the contractual arrangement results in the Company having an obligation either to deliver cash or
another financial asset to the holder, or to settlz the obligation other than by the exchange of & fixed
amaunt of cash or anather flinancial asset for a fixed number of its own equity instruments.

These financial liabilities are initially recognized al fair value less any directly attributable
transaction costs. After initial recognition, these fmancial linbilities are subsequently measured at
amortized cost wsing the effective interest method.  Amoenized cost s caleulated by taking into
account any discount or premium on the issue and fees that are an integrl part of the effective
enterest rate. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognized
o through the amortization process,

As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Company’s payable o customers, pavable to clearing
house, other pavables, mortgage pavable nnd lense liability are classified under this categary, {MNote
16,17, 18, 20, and 28)

Reclassification
The Company reclassifies s financial assets when, and only when, it changes its business model

for managing thoee financial assets. The reclassification is applied prospectively from the first day
of the first reporting period following the change in the business model [reclassification date).
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For a linancial asset reclassified out of the financial assets ot amortized cost cabepory Lo linancial
assets ot FYPL, any gain or loss anising from the difference between the previous amortized cost of
the: financial assed and fuir value is recognized in profit or loss,

Faor & financeal asset reclassified o of the financial assets ot amortized cost categony 1o Mnancial
assefs ot FYOUL any gamn or loss anising from a difference between the previous nmortized cost of
the financinl asset and fair valoe is recognived m OC]

For a financial asset reclassified oot of the Gnancial assels o FVPL category 1o financial assets o
amortized cost, is fair value 2t the reclassification date becomes its new gross carmying amant,
For a financial asset reclassified out of te financial essets ot FVOCT category to financial assets at
amortized cost, any gain or loss previowsly recognized in OCH shall be recognize in profit or loss,

For n financial asset reclassified ow of the financinl nssets ot FVPL category to financial assets at
FVOCL, o5 fair valoe at the reclassification date becomes its new gross carrving amount.
Meanwhile, for a financial asset reclassified out of the financial assets at FYOCI category to
financial assets at FVPL, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in other comprehensive
income is reclassified from equity to profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment at the
reclnssification date.

Impairment of Finuncial Asscis

The Company records an allowance for “expected crelit loss™ (ECL). ECL is hased on the
difference between the contractual cash flows due in sccordance with the contract and all the cash
flows that the Company expects o receive. The difference is then discounted at &n approximation
to the asset's orgingl effective mberest rate,

For receivables from customers, the Company has applied the provision of SRC Rule 521,11 and
Risk Based Capital Adegquacy. The Company’s Credit Losses was computed based on ihe
clagsilication, credit loss mate and basis specified i SRC Rule Mo, 52.1.11, In 2023, section
521112 and 52.1.11.3 was amended through SEC Memorandum Circular Mo, 11, Series of 2023,

Far debt instruments measured & amortized cost and FYOCT, the ECL is based on the 12-month
ECL, which pertains o the portion of lifetime ECLs that result from default events on o financial
instrument that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date. However, when thers has
been a significant increass in credit nsk since initial recognition, the allowance will be based on the
lifetime ECL. When determining whether the credit risk of a financial assct bhas increased
significantly since initinl recognition, the Company companes the rsk of o defaull occurring on the
finapcial mstrament as at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
mstrument as 2t the date of initial recopnition and consider reasenable and supportahle information,
that is available without undue cost or effort, that is indicative of significant incresses in credit risk
since imitial recognition

Derecognition of Financial Assefs and Liabilities
Fraarcial Asxety

A financial asset {or where applicable, a part of o financial asset or part of & group of similar
financial assets) is derecognized when:

o the right to receive cash flows from the asset has expired;

o the Company retains the right to receive cash flows from the financial asset, but has assamed
un obligation to pay them in full without material delay to a third party under a “pase-
through" arrangement; or
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e the Company bas transferred is right to receive cash flaws from the financial nsset and either
(a) Ias transferred substamtially all the risks and rewards of the assel, o

ibeh s meither transferred nor retained suberandially all the risks and resvards of the asset,
nt has vransferred conrol of the asset

Wiwen the Company s transferred its night to receive cash flows from a finaecial assed or has
entered mbe o pass-through arrangement, ardd has neither transferred nor retained substantally ol
the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset nor imnsferred control of the financeal
aiget, the financial asset 5 recognized to the extent of the Company’s continung isvolvemenst m
ilee Minamcial assed, Continuing mvolvensent that takes the Form of o guscantes over e transfenmed
fisancial asset is measured al the lower of the ariginal canrrying amount of the financial assel and
ilee maximum amosnt of consideratson that the Compaiy could be required to repay.

Fimarcial Limhilities

A fmancial Habiliy i3 derecognieed when the obligation under the liabality 15 discharged, cancslbod
ar has expired. When an existing Nnancial Rability is replaced by another from the same kender on
substantially different terms, o te terma of an existing lability are substantialby modified, such an
excheamge or modification is treated ns a derecognition of the arigimal laakiliey amd the recogrition
of a mew lability, and the diffesence m e fespective carrying amounts s recoghized in the
statements of comprehensive income,

A mohification 15 canssdersd substantial il ihe present value of the cash flows under the new terms,
incliling net fees paid of received and discounted using the original effective imterest rate, &5
different by at least 10% from the discounted present value of remaining cash flaws of the orginal
liwbilsty.

The fair value of the modified financial liability is determined based on its expected cash flows,
discounted using the interest rate at which the Company could raise debe with similar terms and
canditions in tlve market. The difference between the carrving value of the ariginal linbility and fair
vaabue of the new leability is recognized in the ststements of comprehensive income,

On the other hand, if the difference docs ot meed the 10%% threshold, the onginal debt s not
extinguished but merely modified. In such case, the carrving amount is adjusted by the costs o
fmes paid or received in the restrocturing,

OMsedting of Fimuncial Assels and Linbibities

Financinl assets and finencinl liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the stabensents of
financial position if, and only if, thene is a currently enforceable legal right fo offset the recognieed
amounts and there is infention to settke on o net basis, or to realize the asset and settbe the liability
simultaneously, This is ot genernlly the case with master netting agreements, and the related assets

and liabilities are presentex] gross in the stailements of financial position.
Classification of Fimancial Instrument between Linbility wnad Equily
A financial instnzment 15 classified as liability if it provides for & conractual obligation to

o [heliver cash or another Nnancial assct o anctlser endity;

« Exchange financial assets or financeal liabilities with another entity under conditions that ane
potentially unfavorable to the Company; ar

« Satisfy the obligation other than by the exchange of & fixed smount of cash or ancther
financeal asset for a fixed number of own equity shares.
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I the Company dees pot have an uiconditional right o avoud delivering cosh or another fmancial
asset to settle is contractual abligation, the ohligation meets the definition of & financial lishility.

Prepayments and Other Current Assels

Frepayments represent advance payments for company expenses which the Company expects o
consume in the subsequent period. Other current assets includes prepaid income tax and VAT input.
Prepayments amd other currenl assels are stabad i the statement of financial position af cost less
nny portion that hes alrepdy been consumed or that has alnsady expired.

Property and Equipment

Froperty amsl equiprment ore tangible nssets that are held for use in the production oF supply of goods
or services, for remtal (o others, or for administrative purposes, and are expected to be used during
meare than one period.

ltems of property and equipment are mitially measured at cost, Such cost includes purchase price
and all incidental costs necessary fo bring the assel o ds location and condition. Subsequent to
imitial recognition, items of praperty and equipment nre mensured in the statement of financial
position at cost less any accumulated depreciation snd sy sccumulated impaimment Josses.
Depreciafion, which is computed an a siraight-line basis, is recognized so as to allocate the cost of
assels less theer residwal values over their estimated useful lives,

If there is an indication that there has been a significant change in useful life or residual valos of an
assed, the depreciation of that asset is revised prospectively to reflect the new expectations,

When assets are sold, retived o otherwise disposed of, their costs and related accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, if any, are removed from the accounts and any resulting gain
or koss is reflected in profit or loss for the period.

Intangible Assets

Intamgible assets accounts mclude purchased compater softwane and trading right. These are
imitially messured at cost less any accumulated amaortization impairment osses.

Computer software 5 amortized over its estimated useful life of three years using the straigli-line
method. 1T there is an indicatbon that there has been a signifeeant clange i the uselul lfe or residual
vitlwe of an indnngible nsset, the amortization is revised prospectively to reflect the new
expectalions,

Trading right is not amortized buat is reviewed each year to determine whether events and
circumstances continue to support an indefinite useful life assessment foe the assel. The Company
tests the asset for impairment by comparing its carrying amouant with its recoverable amount, and
recognizing amy excess of the carrying amount over the recoverablbe amount as an impairnsent boss.

When infangible agsssts are sold, retired or clherwise disposed of, their cost and related accumulated
ameetization and impairment losses, if any, are remoyed from the accounts and any resulting gain
ar [oss i3 rellected in profit or loss for the period.

Impnirnl:l'l of Mon=financinl Asscis

At each reporting date, non=financial assets are reviewsd 1o determine whether there is any
irelication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss, IF there s an imbication of possible
impairment, the recoverable amount of any affected assct (or group of related asssts) is estimated
and compared with its carnying amount, 1f estimated recoverable amount i3 bower, the carrying
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amoaint s reduced to s estimoted recoverable amount, and an impairment loss is recognized
immeditely in profit and loss

Any impairment 1oss is recognized if the carrymng amount of an assel o its cash-generating unit
(CGU) exconds its net recoverable amouns, A CGU s the smallest idendifiable asses group lhal
peneratcs cash Aows that are larpely independent from ather assets of the Company. Impairment
basses are recognized in profit or loss in the perind incurned.

The net recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of Its value in use ar its fair value dess costs to
sell. Value in use is the present value of future cash flows expected to be derived from an asset
while fair value less cost to sell is the amount obtainable from the sal of an asset in an amms lengzth
tranesction belween knowledgeable and willing parties bess cosis of disposal. In assessing value in
se, the estimated Tuture cash Mows are discounted to their present values using n pre-tax discomnt
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
gset,

Impairment losses recognized in prior periods ore nssessed ar esch reporting date for any indications
that the loss has decreassd or no longer exists, An impairment loss is reversed if there has been 2
change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed
anly o the exient that the asset’s canrving amount does ol exceed the carrying amount that would
bave boen determined, net of depreciation or amortization, i no impairment loss has besn
recognized.

(Mher Corrent Liabilities

Otther current liabilities inclode due to BIR and stalutory pavables. These are presented in the
statement of financaal position at ndiscounted amounts,

Mortgage payable

Morgage payeble sccount represents borrowed funds from financial institutions to flasnce
acquisition of Condominium Unit. These are recognized inftially af the transaction price and is
subsequently stnted in the statements of financial position ar amortized cost

Martgnge payalie is classified as corrent liability unbess the Company has an unconditional right
1o defer seetlement of the liability beyond 12 manths from the repoeting date,

Share Capital

Share capital represents the total par value of the eedinary shares issued.
Equity instruments are measured ot the fair valoe of the cash or other consideration received or
receivabie, net of the direct costs of issuing the equity instruments.

The difference between the consideration received and the pas value of the shares issued is cradited
o share premium.

Retaimed Earnings

Retaived eamings include income camed n current and priar periods net of any dividend
declaraticn, effects of changes in accounting policy and prior period sdjustments,

Appropriated refained carmings pertains o the resiricled portion which is intended for the resource
fand in compliance with SRC rule 49,1 (B). Unapproprinted retained samings represent the portion
which can be declared as dividends to sharehalders,
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Revenue

Reveniss is necognized to the extent that it i3 probable that the cconomic benefite will flow to the
Company and the amount of revenue can be measursd relinbly. Revenue is mensured by reference
1o the Fair value of considerntion received ar receivable excluding discounts, returmns amd sales laxes.
Revense = recognized edther a1 & point i time of over a period of time.

T T T

Hevense is recognized at & point in time when trade deals are confirmed, This is computed an an
apresd flat rate to every transaction,

Crater (loss) o fTaanciol astets of FPVL

Income {loss) is recognized when the cwnership of the secarities is transberred to the buyer (at an
amount equal to the excess of selling price over the comrying amount of securities) and 25 a result
of year-end mark-to-mark valuation of securities at FYPL. This mcledes all gains and losses from
changes in fair value and disposal of financial assets at FYPL. Unrealize gains or losses are
recognized in profit or loss upon re-measwrement of the Anancial asset at FVPL at each reporimg
date.

Duvidend Revere
Dividend revemwse is recognized when the Compaiy’s rights 1o reeeive payment hove been

established, provided that it 15 probable that the economic benefits will flow fo the Company and
the amount of meome can be measured reliably,

Tmlferesd iRcowme

Interest income pertains to income on bank deposits, Inferest income 15 recognized in profit and
loss as it accrues, using the effective interest methosd.

(e incoime

Income from ofher sources s recognized when camed during the period.
Otfver Comipreliensive Income

Other components of equity comprise of items of income and expense that are not recognized in
profit or logs for the vear. Other Camprehensive Income pertains to cumulative fiir value gnins on

financial asset at FYOCL,
Expenscs

Expenses are decreases in economic benefits in the form of decreases in assets or indrease in
liahdlities that result in decreases in exquity, other than those relating 1o distributions 1o equity
participants. Expenses are genernlly recognized when the services are received or when the
Expenses are mourred.

Direcs Costs

Drect casts are expenses incurred that are associsted with services rendered which includes salaries
nnd employes benefits and other expenses directly associsted with the cost of service.
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{dperating Expenses

Operating expenses are costs attributable to administeative, marketing, and cther business nctivities
of the Company that cannnd be directly associnted 1o the services rendered.

Borroewing cost
Barrowmg costs include interest and other charges related to borrowing arrangements.

Borrowing costs that are directly astributable to the ncquisition, construction or productson of
qualifying assets are addead 1o the cost of the assets wikil such time as e assets are substantialky
ready for their imtended wse or sabe, Qunlifying assets are assets thot necessarily take a substantial
poriod of time o ped nesdy for Useir Tinendesd s of sale,

Investment income exrned an the temporary Investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is dedwcted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalization,

All ciher borrowing costs are recognized in profit or loss in the pered m which they are incurred.

Imcome Tax

Income tax expense inGlodes curment tax expense and deferred tax expense, The current inx expense
is based on taxable profit for the vear. Deferred tax is recognized on the differences between the
carrving amounts of assets and liabilities 1n the fnancial statements and their coresponding tax
bunsess,

Deferred tax linbilities are recognized for all temparary differcnces that are expected fo increase
tnxable profit in the fulure. Deferred tax assets ane recognized for all femporary differences that are
expected to reduce taxable profit in the future, and any net operating loss carry over (NOLCO) o
excess of minimum corporate income tax {MCIT) over the regular corporate income tax (RCIT)
The net carrving amount of deferned tax asset is reviewad at each reposting date and any adjustments
are recognized in profit or loss.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expectsd to 2pply to the taxable profic on the basis
of tax rates that hove been enacted ar substanbively enscted by the end of the reporting pericd.

Emplovee Beneflis
Shori-term benefits

Short-term benefits given by the Company to s emplovees include salaries and wages,
compensated absences, 13th meath pay, employer shore contributions and other de minimis
benefits, among others,

These are recognized as expenss in the period the employess render services 1o the Company.

Retirement Benefits

The Company does not have a formal retirement bepefit plan, However, the Company provides
retirement benefits in compliance with RA 7641, No actuarial computation was obtained during the
veur because the amount of provision for retirement benefits will not materially affect the fair
prescutation of the financinl stnfements considering that the Company has only few emplovees.
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Heluted Partics

Related party relationship exists when one party bas the ability to control, divectly, or indirectly
throagh one ar more intermediaries, the other party or exercises significant influence over the ofher
party in making financial and operating decisions. Such relationships also exist hetwesn andor
among entises which are under commenn contral with the meporting enlerprise, or between, andor
amang the reportng enterprise and its key monagement personnel, directors, or its major
sharchalders. In considering vach possible related party relationship, attention is directed to the
substance of the relationship, and not merely the legal form_

Lizausas

A lease is a contract that conveys the nght to use an identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for a consideration.

Dedermination as o whether a contract is, or contains, a lease is made st the inception of the lease.
Accordingly, the Company assesses whethser the conlract meets three key evaluations which are:

® b contract contains an identified asset, which is cither explicitly identified in the cantract
ar implicitly specified by being identified at the time the asset is made available o the
lessee;

#  the bzssee has the right to obixin subsiantially all of the economic benefits from use of the
identified asset throughowt the period of use, considering its rights within the defined scope
of the contract; and,

#  the lesses has the nght 1o direct the use of the identified asset throughout the pericd of use.
The lessee assesses whether it bas the right to direct *how and for what purposs’ the asset
i used throughaut the period of use.

Comipany as Lesioe

At lease commencement date, the Company recognizes a right-of-use nsset and a bease liability in
the statement of financial position. The lease linbility is initeally measured at the present value of
the leass payments, discounted wsing the mterest mee implicit in the bkease if that rate is readily
availalde or the Company's meremental borrowing rate. Lease pnyments includs fixed payments
(ncluding in=suhstance fixed), variable lease payments based on an index or rate, amounts expected
to be payable under a residual value guarantee and payments arising from options (cither resewal
of termination) reasonably certain to be exercised. Subsequent to initial measurement, the lishility
is increased for interest incurned and reduced Tor lease payments made.

The right-of-use asact iz mitially measared al the amount of boaso lability adjusted for any initial
dhirect costs incurred by the lessee, an estimate of any costs to dismaontle and remove the asset at the
eid of the lease, and any lease payments made m sdvance of the lease commencement date (net of
any incentives received), Subscquently, the Company depreciates the nght-of-use asset on a
straight-line basis fram the lease commencement date 1o the end of the lease term.  The Company
also assesses the right-of-use asset for impairment when such madicators exist.

The Comparry has elected to account for short-term leases and leases of bow-value assets using the
practical expedients. [nstead of recognizing a right-of-use asset and lease lability, the payments in
relation fo tbese arc recognized as an expense mn profil or loss ona strught-ling basis over lhe bease
term.

Forelgn Currescy Tramsaction

Foreign cusrency ransactions are initially recognized wsing the spol rate of exchange al the date of
the transaction. Monctary assels and labilities thet are desomisated in foreign currency are
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translated into the functional currency using the closing rate as of the reporting date. Gaina and
bosses arising from foreign currency transactions and remeasurement of monetary assets and
Hinhilities are recognized immediately in profit and loss.

Frovisioms and contingencies

Provisions are recognized when the Company has § present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of a past event, it is probable that an satflow of resources embodving econamic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation and o relinble estimate can be made of the amownt of the
obligation. Provisions are measured at the estimated expenditure required to settle the present
obligation, based on the most relinble evidence available at the end of the reporting persod,
meluding risks ond uncertintics associsted with the present obligation. I the elTect af the time
vitlee of money is material, provisions wre determined by discousting the expected future cash flows
al & pre-tax rate that reflects cumrent market assessments of the time value of money and, where
appropriste, the risks specific to the liability. Where discounting is used, the increase in the
provision due to the passage of time is recopnized as an interest expense. Provisions are reviewed
&l the end of each reparting pericd and adjusted 1o reflect the current beat estimate.

Cantingent assets and liabilities are not recognized in the separate finamelal stalements but are
dischosed in the notes w seporate financial statements unless the possibility of an outflow of
respurces embodying economic benefits is remote. Contingend assets are not recognized in the
separate financial statements bat are disclosed in the noles 1o separate gatements of financial
position when an inflow of ecopomic benefits is probable

Chanpes in accounting policies, change in scesunting estimates and correction of prior period
CFrErs

The Company applics changes in accounting policy if the change is required by the accounting
standards or in order 0 provide relinble and maore relevant information abouwt the effects of
trunsactions, other events or conditions oa the Company’s financial statemeis. Changes in
accounting pelicy brought about by new accounting standards are accounted for in sccordunce with
the specific transitional provision of the standards. All olber changes in accounting policy are
accounted for retrmspectively,

Changes in secounting estimates is recognized prospectively by reflecting it in the profit and loss
i the pericd of the change if the change affects that pericd only ar the period of the change and
future poriods if the change nffects both.

Priar period emrors are omissions from, and misstalements in, the Company”s financial statensents
[or coe o more pricr perieds arising from a failare to use, or misuse of, relisble information that
wias availnble when financial statements for those periods were authorized for issse and could
reasonably be expected to have been obtamed and taken into account in the preparation and
presentation of those financial statements.

To the extent practicable, the Company corrects a materinl prior period error retrospectively in the
first finoncial statements authorized for wsue after i discovery by restating the comparative
amounts for the prior periods(s) presented in wiich the errar eccurred, or 17 the emmor securmed before
the earliest prior pericd presented, restating il cpening balances of assets, lisbilities and equity for
period presented.

When it is impracticable to determine the period-specific effects of an emor on comparntive
mfurmation for one or more prior periods presented, the Company restates the opening balances of
aszets, liahilites and equity for the earliest period for which retrospective restatement is practicable.
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Subsequent events

Subsequent events that provide additional information about conditions existing at pericsd end
tadjusting evenls) are recognized in the financaal stastements. Subsequent cvents that provide
ndditionnl information aboul conditions existing after period end (non-adjusting events) are
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

NOTE 5- SIGNTFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the fmancial statements in sceordance with Philippine Financial Reporting
Standards requeres the Company to make estimates and assumptions that affect the ameounts
reported in the financial statements and accompanying ootes. The judgements and accounting
eatimates and assumptions used in the financial statements are based upon management evaluaticon
of relevant facts and circumstances as at the reporting date. While the Company believes that the
assumplions are reasonnhle and appropriste. Fulure events may occur which will camse the
assumpdions used in arriving at the estimates to change. The effects of changes in estimates will be
reflected in the financial statements as they become reasonsbly determinatide.

The accounting estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going basis. Revisions
to aecounting cslimates are recogniced in the period in which the estimate is revised and in any
future pericd affected.

The following are the significant judgement, nccounting estimates and assumptions by the
Company’

Judgment

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, managemeant has made the following
judgments, apart from those involving estimations, which have the most significant effect an the
amounts recognized in the financial statements:

Assessutent of Impairment of Nonfinanciol Assets

The Company determines whether there are indicators of impairment of the Company’s non-
financial assets. Indicators of impairment include significant change in nsage, decline in the asset’s
fair value or underperformance relative to expected historical or projected future results,
Determining the fair value requires the determination of fishure cash flows and future economic
benefits expected to be penerated from the continued use and ultimate dispesition of such assets. It
requires the Company to make estimates and assumptions that can materally affect the financial
statements. Future events could be wsed by monagement to conclude that these assets are impaired
Any resulting impairment loss could have a material adverse impaet on the Company's financial
pagition and financial performance. The preparation of the estimated fiture cash flows and
ceonomic beoelits mvelves significant judepments and estimation.

Mo impairment loss on non-financial assets was recognized in the Company's financinl statements
in either 2023 or 2022

Estimatcs
Thse followng are the key asumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation

unceramnty sl the end of the reporting period, that have 2 significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilitics within the pext reporting perad:
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Extimantow of Alewaince for Credit Losses

The measurement of te allowance (or Credit Losses on financial asseis al amortized cost and at
FWORTT is an area that requines the use of sian.iﬁzuu.l mssumptions abowt the fulure econamic
comditioins and cradil behavior (e, Ikelibood of customens defaulimg and the resulling losses).
Explanation of the inputs, assumptions and cstimation used in measuring Credit Lossas 15 further
detailed in Mote 30,

Extimvting Useful Lives of Properiy and Equipment

The Company estimntes the wseful lives of its property and equipment based on the p-:-nu}d BV
which these assets are expected 10 be available for wse. The estimated uselul Hves of these assels
arel residual values are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, caly if there is o significant chunge
in the asset or how it is used.

The following estimated wuseful lives are used in depreciating the property and equipment and
computer egaipment wnder intongibles:

Particulars Useful Lives
Condominium Unit 23 years
Leasahold Improvenant 10 years
Furniture, Fixtures & Office Equipment 5 years

Determination of Realizable Anrount of Deferred Tax Assers

The Company reviews its deferred tax assets at the end of each reporting pericd and reduces the
carrying ansount o the exient that | is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or pant of the deferred tax asset to be utilized. Manngement assessed that the
deferred tax assets recognized as at December 31, 3023 apd 2022 will be fully wtilized in the coming
years, The carrying value of deferred tax assets as of those dates is disclosed in Mode 27,

MOTE - CASH AN CASH FAOUIVALENTS

This account consists of

2023 2002
Petty cash fund r 15000 P | 5,000
Cash in bank 13,107,701 11,982,593
Cash equivalents 731861 738,872

13454562 * 12,736,465

Caosh in bonk generally eams interest a1 rates based on daily bank deposit rates, These are
umrestricted and available for use in the Company's operation except for the special reserve bank
accounl with Mayhank.

Interest incame recagnized in the Statements of Comprebensive Income amounted to PHL563 i
2023 and PLE SO0 in 2022, (Mote 25)

The Company's 3 1-day dollar time deposit investment with mterest rate of 0.23% amounts 1o LSD
13,171 in 2023 and USI 12,166 in 2022, translated 1o Philippine Peso amounting 1o P731,861 and
P738,872 at an exchange rate of P55,567 and P56,120to a USD in 2023 and 2022, respectively.,
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In compliasse with Securities Regulation Code (SRC) Rule 49.2-1, the Company mainlains o
specinl reserve bank accoumt with Maybank amounting to PEA6.014 and PE479,041 as o
December 31, 223 and 2022, respactively for the exclusive bencefli of s customers. The
Company’s revenise requirement 15 determined based on SEC™s prescribed computation, As of
Degember 31, 2023 and 2022, the Company”s neserved account are adeguate 10 cover ils requined
requiremeiss,

NOTE7- FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

Thia aceaunt comgists of

2025 2022
Equitics in PHISIX o B201446 ¢ 7138431
Eguities culside PHISIX 32,541 654 38,168,733

* o 40,TH3 134 r 43307364

The movement in the financial assets at fair value through profit or kose is summearized bebosw;

L | 1
Balamce at beginning of year P 45307364 47898 249
Additsons p L= 11]] 1,122,770
Dispiosals (256,000 (R09,119)
Fair value adjustments 4524330 2,504, 530)
Balance at end of year 40,783 0134 45307364

Fianecaal assets sl FYPL represents equity securitics held for trading. Fair valwes are based on the
quated market price at the PSE as af December 31, 2025 and 2022 or on the last trading day of cach
VEAr.

Dividend meome on financial assefs at FVPL presented as separate line iten in the statements of
comprehensive income amounted to P3.224.558 and P3,298 581 in 20235 and 20022, respectively

The Company recopnizes gain on sale of financial assets st FVPL presented as part of gam on sale
finamcaal assels &t FYPL in the statements of comprehensive meome amounting to ™4, 860 in 2023
and P& 304 in 2022

The change in fair value of financial pssets of fair value through profit or loss recognized and
presented as separate ling ftem in the statements of comprehensive income amounted 1o a loss of
Pa 524 250 and #2904, 556 in 2023 and X022, respectively.

NOTE 8- RECEIVABLES FROM CUSTOMERS, net

This account consisls of:

e ]k N . |
Bieceivable from customers | o UTE, THS | o 1 I
Reeeivable from ofher brokers 20

r 6,285 | R
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The seeunty valuation of the debit halances of customers” accounts are presented below:

o ] o Lr
separily Besurily
_Maney Balancy _ Waluacksi-Liig Plusiezy Balahco Yalicdizn-Limp
Fully seviined aziomnta;

Whre ke 15 g o L F 13436501} F EST 00 B ALAaT A0
Dezreeper 200 to 250 -} -] . =
Hervesen | 509 oo 000 e ) (WE ] TH) L0
Bciween 160 0 1409 .} ] [ APATS 1558 800
STT X __l.!.-il-.ﬂl-l:-'ﬁ_l 205K 51 A3 037 5[

Parilally secured oidounits.
Lz lham 195 BT e ML 0%, T 255,713 2% HuF
Ukisecures] scooumis 152 LEL ) -1 EELIEL -
EhERE] 551,779 e 256 430

e Al Eor eralil

b L 4 12,807 263

P 9TGIRN LN ATE) P 113995 P 3149419

Resivalles from customers are due within two (2) business days after the consummation of the
transactions,

None of the Company's receivables from customers have been pledged as collsteral w any loan,
Allowance for credit losses on receivables from customers is computed using the formula provided
by the SRC Rule Mo. 32.1.11 which forms part of the Risk-Based Capital Adequacy (RBCA)
Report, Mote 30

A reconciliation of the alkvwance far credit losses at the beginming and end of 2023 and 2022 is ns
fialbows:

23 2022
Balance at January | F TR07.263 P 2,831,508
Credil losses 17,936 .
Recovery of allowance - {24,244
Balance, December 31 o 2E25 190 " 2807 263
NOTEY- OTHER RECEIVABLES
This accounl consiss of
2023 2022
Diviclersds receivable r 3 R43 P 3843
Advances to employees 1,056 B.96]
Other receivables 113602 I 13602

r 120500 P | 26, 4%
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Thee tabbe showa roll forwand analysis of the other receivables;
2023 2022
Reginning halance 2H.692) (o 3117, 775)
Additions =} 617471
Paymnts =) [726,554)
208 692 2E,692)
Allowance for credit bosses (9500 (95,0
F 115652 | 1 13,692)

NOTE 1t - FINANCIAL ASSET AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

This account represcints investment in PSE shares amounting io P34,680,000 and P32,232.000 as at

Decernber 31, HZ2Y and 2022, respectively,

The fair values of the shares have been determined directly by reference 1o published prices in active
market. Market valoe of the PSE shares amourts to 170 and P158 per share as of December 31,
2023 and 2022, respectively, The Company has 204,000 PSE share in 2023 and 2022.

Dividend income on cash dividend declaration from the Philippine Stock Exchange amounts to
F2,040,000 in 2023 and P2,2449.000 in 2022, which is presented as scparate e iem in the

statements of comprehensive income.

Reconcilintion of the carrying amount af the beginning and end of 2023 and 2022, effects of market

adjustments and related deferred tax lability are as follows:

Shares | et haned el e
Dalance at begimning of the year R ER D P 32, I3 T, M Fo 43, a0
Lhealizsd gain {les=] Suring
e ysar 3 i 11 A2 ECH]
Mirke value, end of the vear PR F o 3ad,GR0, 000 0, (K e v

The fair valoe changes an these financeal assets amounts fo P2,448,000 and (P 1,628,000) in 2023
and 2022, respectively, these are taken directly to the equity net of related tax, Deferred fax resulting
from unrealized goin (loss) on this investment omounted to (M6 12,0000 and P2,%07,000 in 2023 and

20022, respectively. (Note 27)

NOTE 11 - PREFAYMENTS AND OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

Tlis aceount consists af

i PR X2

VAT input r 1417643 r 1.531.568
Prepaid income fax (Mote 27) 09,693 460,295
Prepaid insurance 142,550 127,924
Prepaid taxes and licenses 100,565 67 565
Dreposits 156, Bl1S 136,805
P 2 AXT 556 P 2175757

VAT inpud arc value added tax imposed oo purchases of goods and services, These are deductible

to the Company's future VAT hiahildy,
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Prepasd income tax pertains to excess tax credits, which could be applied 1o tax lisbility of the
commpany i the future or suecceeding period.

Prepaid insurance represents the unamoriized insurance premium which is npplicable in the
suceGnding period.

Prepaid taxes and livenses pertain to advance payment of permits and licenses for the next reponting
peering.

Drepessits perfain to the advanced payment for the 5,000 CG Shares.
MOTE 12 - INVESTMENT PROPERTY

The Company’s investment property pertains o a fully depreciated parking space located at the
Tytana Plaza m Binondo.

2023 2022

Cast

Beginning of the year r pi T ¥ ZRO,000

Additions ) 3 7

Ending of the vear % 280,00 280,00
Accumulated Depreciation

Bepinning of the year 280,41 280,000

Amortization = -

Ending of the year 280,000 280,004
Carrying amount

As of December 31 r - P

Mo income was camed on this invesiment properly in 2023 and 2022,
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NOTE 13 - PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, net

A reconciliation i the camying amounts al the beginning and end of 2023 and 2022, of properny
and equipment is slown below:

2023
o Furmiture
Corslimininm *: . Lensghokd :
. Fi i
[t ot t::iiig?im I : Tl
Cast E
Jenuary | | i e T F | 4540, 564 r |, xhe 0l #5652
Additions
Dizpinals
Doccmber 31 | 7,797,361 1,441, 548 | X6, 43 DS I6MT
Actumulabed
Degsecialion
h.rﬂ:l:r:.:_]_ . 1490 588 327745 [ R183%7
[epreciation - = RLEG HIu1E
Dispsals . : A 2
[iecereker 18 . 1,50, 5E8 A1 | 1, A, ik
Carrying Amount =
December 11, W32 F 17797 560 o - b 4, 20K | S L
Carrying Amswn| —
Decenileer 31,2023 F 17,707,840 r - " &9, 52 FOIE0 16 TR
Hi22
T Fumiture,
Corsfominium = p 1w hald -
(AL Clesr) }T'&QT# [mprovessents e
Clost B
Tmnuary | * 17,797,381 r | A5 564 r [,223.043 f 20506992
Addilions - . - -
Diposls - - = -
Dacember 31 17,797,361 | A1 558 =TT LI AFIT
Accumulatsd
Dipreciation
j:l:l-l'l'-l'-l'-l':r_i_ = LT 245 B I T AT
Cizprecialion - - B1.5934 Eluis
s peeinda = < s, mesee T
Db 31 " I, &850, SEE AT TS | k14,515
Curying Amount -
Deecember 11, 20| P 17797 341 o = F agy 2%4 | P | e
Carrvisg Amount —
December 51,2012 F  17,7973al o - * ], 208 P IREURESD

O March 2, 2018, the Company signed a desd of absolute sake for the acquisition of condominum
unit, As of reporting date the titke of this condominism unit has nod been transferred 1o the Company.

The condominiom unit parchased at PSE One Bonifacio High Streed was used as oollatem! io the
morigage loam, MNote 20)
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Ag ar December 31, 2023 and 2022, the management believes that there i no impairment loss on
its property and cgupireil.

The amount af depreciation is presented in the statements of comprelensive income under the
operating expenscs (Mote 247,

NOTE 14 - INTANGIRLE ASSETS, net

This account consists of trading right and computer software.

Trmdin

Trading right represents the Company’s privilege in tradimg securitics in the PSE floor. In
compliance with Section 8, Article 11 of the Amended By-Laws of the Exchange, the Company's
trading right {previcusly the exchange membership seat) s pledped at its full value to the PSE 1o
secure the payments of all debis due 1o i Exchange and fo other trading participants of the
Exchange arising oul of or in conmestion with the present or fulure contracts relating to securities
and in compliance with Section 7, Arficle Il of the Rules Govemning Trading Rights and Trading
Participants, 1o secure the pavment of all debts and claims due 1o the clients of the Comparny, the
Governmend, the Exchange and the otlver trading participants of the Exchange and 1o the Securities
Clearing Corporation of the Philippines.

In 2001, the demutualization or conversion of PSE into a stock corporation was approved by the
Securities ad Exchange Commission (SEC) effective August 8, 2001, Ench membership seal will
be exchanged for shares of stock of FSE. In accordance with the conversion, PSE will issue
o 2million shares with a par value of P1 per share oot of the members” contribution of
PaR6 Ganillicn. Thus, each of the 184 membersbrokers will subscribe to a total of 50,000 shans of
siocks with & par value of #1 per share. The balance of members” comtribution of FZ77.4million
will be treated as ndditionnl paid-in surplus in the financial statements of PSE.

In addition to the shares, each member will receive a Centificate of Trading Right to maintain ilsir
cantinued acoess to the trading floar of PSE. The Right can be asigned and transferred by the
pembers.

PSE, however, will not issue shares of stocks for the value of its donated assets. The donnted pssets
conststing of two (2] pieces of real property located in Makati and Pasig City, where its trding
floors are located, are suhpect o nestrictions on their translerability.

The effects of the conversion plan specifically on the separate valuation of the ownership of the
exchamge seat and the trading rights have been recognized in the Company’s financial statements.
The last transacted price for the sale of trading right in the PSE was Eight Million Fesos
(PE,000,000) a5 approved by the PSE Board of Directors on November 16, 2022, Hence. no
impairment loss is recognized in 2023 and 2022, Trading right balance as of December 31, 023
ared 2022 amounts 1o #352,000.

Computer Software

Camputer software pertains to the Company s accounting system soflware,

The gross carrying amounts net of accumulated amorlization are presented ns part ol meangible
assets in the Statements of Financial Position, Yearly amoeriization is presented under Operating
Fxpenses of the Statements of Comprehensive Income.

A reconcilintion of the carrying amounts at the beginning and end of 2023 and 2022, of computer
software is shown below:
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2023 2022
Cast
Beginning of the year o B9 404 r 716,697
Adiditions 75,114 7L Te
Ending of the year ¥14,520 B49 406
Aceumubnted Dtpr-nchﬁ-um
Beginnmg of the year TOR, 183 136518
Amortization 785114 . 5
Ending of the year B74,297 90 183
Carryisg amouwnt
As of December 31 o 50,223 ¢ 5223
NOTE 15 - REFUNDABLE DEPOSITS
This account consisls af:
1023 2032
Cleaning and trude guaranty fund r 159,655 158,310
Bemal deposit (Mowe 28) 206,240 26,240
r 185,895 F 184,350

Clearmg and Trade Guaranty Fund (CTGF) pertains to fund established, maintained by Securitics
Clearing Corpocation of the Plilippings (SCCPY, for the purposs of covering faibked trades due 1o
member’s illiquidity and'or insolvency. This is refundable wpon cessation of the Company’s
business and'or termination of the Company’s membership with SCCP.

Rental deprsit pertains to the secarity deposit pasd to Makati Comerstome Leasing Corp. {lessar)
for the lease of its office space. This is refundable upon termination of end of the lease agreement.

NOTE 16 - PAYABLES TO CUSTOMERS

This account coigists off

023 2022

Paynbles to customers ¢ 14,284 842 P 10,602,084

Payable to customers - tender offer 13,985 -

Dividends pavable-customers - 12,449

r 14,318,827 ¥ 10,614,533

The security values of the credid balance of customers' account follows:
A0ES PiLA
Secarity Bocurity
Credit Valwation- Credil Wahmlion-
Balance Leng [l iy Lang

With moacy hilance F 14284841 563,913,438 FIGG0E0dd Fal2H0AS2
Withoul moeney

balance e B AAEMLTO - 5,541,081 951

F 14284341 F G009, 748,159 10602 0Ed P 6163 162400

Payables to custonsers are non-interest bearing and are due within two (2) trading days afler the

consmimation of the irnsacions,
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Payahle 1o customers = fenider offer perains to the '9.‘:".'!,'.I'.|1:|'-ﬁ'lu'l,'. percent (75%) of the tender offer
price resgived for Hobcim shares, The amount was mod yet releassd o the secunty hobders who
participated i the teader offer awaning receipl ol the balance, twenty-five percent {25%) held in
eecrow by the Paying Agent. The Paying Agent shall release the balances within five (5} days from
delivery to the Bidder of the original and valid CAR from the relevant Revenue District Office of
the Bureau of Internal Revenue authorizing the transfer of the Tendered Shares from the Tendering
Shareholder to the Bidder.

MOITE 17 = FAYARLES TO CLEARING HDIUSE

The net balance of this account s af Decenber 31, 2023 and 2022 relates 1o the trading transactions
for the last two trading days in 2023 and last three trading days in 2022, which hove not yet been
cleared, The outstanding balances were net payvable o clearing bouse amounting to ®129.900 in
2023 and P244,0600 in 2022,

NOTE 18- OTHER PAYABLES

This pccount consists ol

023 2032
Accrued expenses r 405, 0 o 36011
Central depositary fees payable 19,813 43,009
(dhers 47 158 22 5

r 471,577 P 371,383

Aceiwad expenses are Company s incurmad expsanses but not pasd as of reporting period.
MOTE 1%= OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

This accound consisis of}

2023 2022
e fo BIE T 67,013 5 a7 141
Sratwtory pavable &, 507 608

r 75,610 B 67,749

Due to BIR consists of obligations to Buresu of Internal Revenue such as final taxes, stock
transaction taxes, withholding taxes amd value added tax.

Statulory payable congists of statutory obligations 1o government agencies such as Social Security
System, Philippine Health Insurance Corporation and Home Development Mutual Fund.

NOTE 20 - MORTGAGE PAYABLE

Om March 17, 2017, the Company secured a loan from a becal commercial Bank amounting to
P 16,000,000 using its office at PSE Bonifacie High Strest, Fort Bonifacio Global City as collateral
{Mate 13)

Hepayment terms provide a bean teem of 10 years, inferest servicing for the fisst 19 quariers,
thereafter payment in 21 equal installments of principal and interest and remaining balance until
expary of the bean. The bank pranted the Company 5 vears grace period before mitial payment of
monthly amartization. Initial payment commenced on March 31, 2022, Interest an the kean ks fixed
At 5.9531% for the first 5 years. Thercafter, effective interest rate will be based either on T-tall
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reference palicy 4% or | vear post B-plus 3% ar prevailing market rate at the 638 time of the expiry
whichever is highes. Additional terms pravide for a mortgage on the above- meationed property
including any and all improvements including froits and renls in favor of the Lender,

The amount of interest expense paid amounts 1o #1L064.251 and ™72.645 for the year 2023 and
2022, nespectively,

Dretails of the outstanding balance of the company”s mortgage follows:

w3 oo
Current L7066 F o LGE0 %49
MNon-curnent — 7,779,031 10,638,302

POLRSL B 13319151

Reconciliation of the beginning and ending balances follows:

2023 2022
Beginning balance F 13319151 P 16,000, 0K
Prosgeds - -
Payments 2,770, iy {2680,847)
Ending hnlance P 10,549,001 P 13319151

MOTE 21 - EQUITY

Share Capital

Tlse Company is authorized to issue One Million (1,000,000} ordinary shores with par value of one
hundred pese (P1O0) por share,

Az at December 31, 2023 and 2021, the Company's total subscribed nnd isswed and outstanding
capifal stock is owned by twelve (12) sharehalders. Seven {7} shareholders owned more than 104
shares,

A reconciliation of the outstanding share capital at the beginning and end of 2023 and 2022 is shown
] [

2023
Shares Amaouni
Outstanding 127512022 S5 S0} S5 250,000
Issuance : =
Heacquisition . .
Outstanding 125172023 5525040 T S5.250.000
2022
Shares Amoait
Outstanding 12/31/202] SSZE00  ® 55,250,000
Issuance = -
Rescquisition

Qutsdanding 12312022 552,500 P 55250000
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Aininveny Capitel Regrrement

In a enecting held on October 21, 2000, the SEC issued Resolution Mo, 489 and 492 granting the
deferment of the P30.000,000 unimpaired paid-in capital requirement of Trading Participants
effective January 1. 2011 until Movember 30, 2011 provided that Trading Participants witl
Unimpaired Paid-up Capital falling below #30,000,000 shall post a surety bond amounting to
P30,000.000 oo top of the surety bond of P12,000,000 in complinnce with SRC Rule 28.1 for the
sume period until securitics beld &nd controllad by the Trading Participant shall be recorded under
the manee of the individual clients in the books of the Transfer Agent or in the sub-account with the
Philippine Depository and Trust Corporation at il opticn of the client. Compliance with the
requircent is a condition for the renewal of the Broker Denler license for the period covering
Jnnuary 1, 2011 to December 31, 20113,

In compliance with Section 2 of I, Article VI of the amended Market Regulation Rules, which
was approved by the Securities and Exchange Commission on September 8, 2000, effective
Movember 1, 2009, the surety bond, shall be Ten Million Pesos (10,000,000} for Brokers and Two
Million Pesos {P2,000,000} far Dealers.

Cn November 24, 2027, the Company renewed its surety bond coverage for the period Janisary 1,
2023 w December 31, 2023 and on November 16, 2023, the Company renewed its surcty bood
coverage for the period January 1, 2024 1o December 31, 2024 in the amount of Twelve Million
Pesas (#12,000,000) in complance with SRC Rule 28,1,

Based an SEC Memarmndum Circular Mo, 16 dated Nowvember 11, 2004, starting December 1, 2005,
every broker dealer is expected 10 comply with all the requirements of the Risk-Based Capital
Adequacy (RBCA) rules. As of December 31, 2005, the RCBA report is prepared based on the
guidelnes which cover the following risks: (a) position of market risks, (b) credit risks such as
countesparty, settlement, large exposure, nnd margin financing risks, and () operation risk.

The Company monitors capital on the basis of RBCA Ratio and Net Liguid Capital (NLC L RBCA
requirement is the minimum level of capital that has to be maintzined by firms which are licensed,
vr securing o broker dealer license, taking into consideration the firma size, complexity and business
risk. RBC ratio is the quotient of the NLC and the sum of the reguirements for operation risk, credit
risk, and position or market risk.

ML, on the other hand, represents the equity eligsbde for NLC adjusted tor non-allownble current
and non-current nsseis a5 described umder the Circular.

In order ta maintain or adjust the capital structure, e Company may adjust the amount of dividends
paicl by shareloblers, issue new shares or sell assets to reducs deb.

Under the guidelines set-out by the SEC, all registered brokers dealers should maintain the
following RBCA and NLC requirements;

A, BBCA ratio of greater than or equal o 1.1;

As st December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Company's RBCA mtio of 21 and 2.00,
respectively, is in conpliance with the mlaimumn capilal requinsment el oul by the RECA
framewark in 2022, however in 2023, the Company falls below the ratio requirement. This
is due o the pew compulation implemented last August 2023 wherein the FYOCT was
deducted &t market price as meligible ass2t and the cumulative pain of the same FYOC]
was also deducted from the equity in the computation of Net Liguid Capital,

B. NLC should be at least P3,000,000 or 3% of aggregate indebledness, whichever 1s higher;
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. A dealer who deals anly with proprietary shares and docs not keep shases in s custody
shall maintain & NLC of #2,500,000 or 2.5% of aggregate imdebtedness, whickever =

higlstr;
[ Mo broker dealer shall permit its agpregate indebtedness 1o exceed 2,000% of its NLC,

The Companty"s MLC amount w P3,751,868 and $40,911,977 as of December 31, 2023 and 2002,
respectively, which is more than 5% of the Company s aggregase imdebtedingss, As of December
11, 2023 and 2022, the Company is in compliant with ftems A to 13 as prescribed by Securities and
Exchange Commission (SEC).

On May 28, 2009, the SEC approved PSE’s Rules Governing Trading Rights and Trading
Participants which provides among other the following provisions:

a. Trading participants should hove a minimum pnimpaired paid-up capital {defined as the trading
participant’s total paid wp capital less amy deficiency in the retnimed eamings account) of
P20, 000,000 effective December 31, 2009, provided further that effective December 11, 2010
and onwards, the minimum unimpaired paid up capital shall be #30,000,000; and

h. Fach trading participant shall pledge its trading right to the exteo of its full value 1o secure the
payment of 2ll debts and claims due o the tmding participant, the governament, PSE and to other
trading participants of the PSE and to the Securities Clearing Corporation of the Philippines.

On August 8, 2023, the SEC approved pmendments to the 2015 Implementing Rules and
Regulntions of the Secerities Regulation Code (the #2015 SRC Rules™) and SEC Memorandum
Circular (MC) Mo, 16, series of 2004, relative o the sedtlement cyele from T43 1o T+1.

As at December 31, 2023 and 2022 the Company is in compliance with PSE’s Rules Goveming
Trading Riglts and Trading Participants.

Het in

In compliance with SRC Rule 49.1 (B} Reserve Fund, every broker dealer shall anpually approprste
3 cerinn minimum percentage of its audited profit after lax and transfers the same to the
approqeieted retained earnings. Appropriation shall be 3%, Z0%, |0 of profit after tax for brokes
dealers with unimpaired paid up capital of # 10M to P 30M, P S0M to P 300 and above PHIM,
respectively.

In compliance with the above circular, the Company appropriated retained earnings amounting 1o
Pnil in 2023 and 2022, respectively. Tatal appropriated retained camings as of December 31, 2023
and 2022, in complionce with the above circular amounted to #4,012 275, The company is in
compliance with the SRC Rule 49, 1(B).
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Reconciliation of the revaluation increment account is ns follows:

2023 Pl |
Balance at the beginning of year T 18464400 3 37,185,440
Foir valee gain (kess) on PSE share 2,448,004 {11,628, 0000)
Tan effect (612,000) 2,907,004
(ither comprehensive income aller tax 1,836,00M) B.721.000
Balance at the end of vear F 30 5 ADD P 28,464 400

NOTE 22 - COMMISSION INCOME

The Company earms cammission income [rom stocks transactions, tender offer and initinl pulblic
affering, these amounts to P3435,208 in 2023 and 1,594,659 in 20221,

Breakdown of conimission revenue recognized ot point in time follows:

2023 022
Commiesion on stocks transaction 4 212,265 2 |, 214,512
Commission on [PO 122,943 _AB0.14T

r 345208 P 1,594,659

NOTE 23 - DIRECT COSTS

Details of the Company's direct costs ane as follows:

023 2022
Stock exchange ducs and fees r K73,456 716,156
Salaries and employee benefits 3 N28 390,827
13th month and bonwses 31,957 36,000
Employves welfare 201,541 -
£5%, PHIC, HDMF contribution 12000 29,721
F 1317982 2P 11927M
NOTE 14 - OPERATING EXPENSES

Details of the Company™s operating expense are a3 follows:
M3 2022
Salaries and employes benetits o 1,401,937 4 1321273
Daepreciation and amortization (Mole 13,14) 397,061 384613
Condominium dees 284 8BHZ 370844
Lltilities expense 240,078 221,152
Profeszional fee 157,01} 257,00
Transportation and travel 158,487 159,079
Postage, telephone and communication ¥9,235 112,381

Taxes and licenses Th 086 B, 192
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HTice supplws 59,05 91,230
Insurance 23380 G, e
Fepairs and mainenance 18,705 ] |
Fines und penaltics 14,106 11,219
Mestings and conferences B, 1, 0Hx0
Subscripteon and periodicals L1215 343
Bank charges 1,563 7400
Training and seminars LT _
Manzgement Bomus - 443,402
Miscellanesus r — 171,594 LHE, 29
r 5185064 P 3,760,051
NOTE 13- OTHER INCOME
Dictails of the Company’s other income ane as follows:
2023 2022
Unrealized foreign cxchange gain L 1Ha, 22 r 11487
[nberest income {Moe &) 20,563 18,565
Cdlvers 1,727 1,754
Hecovery of credit loss (Mot B) ] - 24,244
T 128,312 r 118,054

NOTE 26 - DEPRECIATION, AMORTIZATION. AND EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Dipreciation and employee benefits were presented as follows:

13
Operating
Direct Cosls Expenses Tatal
Employes benefits* P 444,526 r 1,401,937 i 1, H46.463
Diepreciation and amorization - 397062 397,062

*Emploves bengfits tncliudes salories and empiaypee hemefits, J3° oronth pay and bormses aad 555,

PHIC, HOMF contritaion, employee welfure

2022
Chperating
Direct Costs Expenses Tokal
Emplayse benefits® P 456,548 P 1,321,273 P 1,777,821
Dieprecintion &nd amortizmion = 384,613 334613

*Emiployee benefits includes sofariex and eriployes benefiiz, 13° month pay and bonues and S35,

PHIC HDMF comtribuion, employee welfare

NOTE 27 - INCOME TAXES

Income inx benefit for the years ended December 31 consists of:

Current
Defermed

2023 2022
r ) 4.401)
 2344.352) {750.057)
P (2344351) P (T46056)
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Reconcilintion betwesn statubory tax amd effective tax follows:

Page 31 af 46

2023 2022
Incame lax at stafutory rate 16000 0H1) F (930 748}
Tax effect of income subject to final tax (5,141 {4,642
Tax effect of dividend income exemgpt (B, 140) (824,645}
Tax effect of non-dedwetible interest expense 1,285) [ 1GL)
Tax effect of non-deductible fines and penaltics 3,501) 2.803)
Tax effect of expired MCIT 61,9 13,070)
Adjustment of taxes of prior period 331} -)
Tox effect of expired NOLCO =) 1,005,944)
Imcome tax al elTective rate T [(2344351) r* { T, 55)

Analysis of income tax payable (prepaid income tax) follows:

2013 2022
'Ihgullr Corporaie Income Ton:
Incomse (loss) belore fax P (6 AMT1T) * (3758990
Permanent differences:
Interest income subjected to final tax (20,363) {15,569)
Moi-taxable dividend incame (3,224.55K) (3,298 581)
Mon-deductible interest expense 5,141) 4,642)
Man-deductible fines and penalties 14,006) 11,219)
Temporary differences:
Depreciation of right-of-use asset 240,01 2) 240,012)
Finance cast related to lease llability 12,133) 26,713)
Actual rent expense for the year {270, 308) (265,008}
Loss on bease concession S, 10) | 323}
Unrealized foreign exchange (gain) bss (106,022) {T3.487)
Unrealized market loss 4, 524,230) 2904, 5346
Credif losses 17,955) <]
Recovery from credif losses =] (24,244)
Taxable mconme (5,203 ,421) (4,250,433
‘Tax rate I5%) 25%)
P (L,300855 * (1062608
Minimuam Corporate Income Tax:
Taxable gress income 4 (9, 187) 4 90,074)
Tax ribe 1.5%) 1%)
(14.493) 4,501
Tax due (Higher of RCIT or MCIT) r P 4901
Prior yvear's excess credit (492,195) (444, 724)
Creditable withholding tax (17,308} (32470
Prepaid income tax F o 509,693) P (492205}

Details of DTA and DTL fallows:

2023 2022

LTA:
DT A arsing from MCIT P 4,901) # 6,892)
DT A ansing from MOLCO 4071,507) 2, 770,652)
DTA nrising lrom allowance for credit losses T30,D48) 725,564)
DTA arising from unrealized loss on FVOCI G 48T, 200) 7,054 200)
DTA arising from lease liability 1,399) 4.947)
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[¥TL.:
DTL arising from fair value changes on FVIPL (G468, 145) (7,500, 202)
IXTL arising from unrcalized gnin on FYOC] (14,616) (14,414]
I3TL. arising from unrealized forex _{44,9%4) (18.48R)

P 4767300 P 3034945

Tl net deferred tax liahilities pertzin to the following as of December 31, 2023 and 2022 and the
related deferred tax incomse (expense) for the year ended December 31, 2023 and 2021;

Fsrmerd s af Comnfirdernibee Iroore

Simarera o Firasaal Trsaion Pralil on Lins Chhar oo ream e Incorre
HiEA FTRE s OGS el 2ea3
[efomed face - KICLT F i F i EET P che Ly P i#le F . F
Docfarrind i = BT AT 5RT 2.TTLERL 1,3 255 Hpde
Al lor peerkl fos s 100,548 7 ped FIELT] ] . =
Lol
Alloramer e oo losieoe- 4 40
1 aher mravalice
lLensz Dk iy . 447 13,3405 Tl
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Deferred tax asset from NOLCO, anses from thse taxable loss that can be charged against income
of the next three taxable years except for NOLCO imcurred for the year 2020 and 2021, Pursuant bo
Section 4 (hbbh) of Bayanihan 11 and as implemented under RR Mo, 25-2020, the net operating loss
of » business or enterprise incurred for the taxable years 2020 and X111 can be carried over as
deduction from gross income for the next five {5} consecutive taxable years following the year of
such loss,

Details of NOLCE that can be carried over a3 deduction from gross (ncome for the rexd free (3
consecutive iauble years in reference to RR 25-2020 foilows:

i 'll:ﬂd Aurresani Appdead Fxpirad Balanoe Dl off Es prirstson
m -— -——
2020 o423 Y86 P . " - P4 342 This Decamber 31, D125
20210 2,589 409 S - = o E,mrjﬂﬁ December 31, 2116

* -E_,a:'l-I,l'.rfl- i = - * 6,E12 TS

Deteils af NOLCO that can be carrled over as deduction from gross income for the next three (3)
consecutive iaxable pears follows:

M At Applicd Epleed Balince Date of Expirticn

[T ey L 5

2l * 5103421 3 - r - F 53411 Decamber 11, 2026
mar 4350433 +. 250,433 December 31, 3025
el 440 978 0TS - December 31, 2002

Fl3AT 6y P " r - B OASI RS
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Deferred 1ax nsset from MOCTT, is the carry Forwand benefit of the excess of mindimiem corporate
ipcome tax (MOTT) over the regular corporate income tax (RCIT ) Excess MCTT can be used within
thires taxable years from the date of payment, The Minimum Corporate Income Tax (MOTT) was
redoced o one percent {1%) elfective July 1, 2020 until June 30, 2023 parsuant © Revenue
Regulation 5-2021 On July 1, 2023, Minimem Corporate Income Tax (MCIT) was reverted hack
o two percent (),

Dretails of DTA relating MCIT follows:

2023
i Amount Applied Expired Balanece Date of Expiration
Tncirred =
200 P o6l20] F = Fooaloal P - Doeember 31, 225
w01 4901 : : 4901 December 31, 2024
* 66802 F - T &l P 40m
202
Year Amaount Applied Expired Bralarse Dz of Explration
_Incurred
o] B 13070 " . P30 " - December 11, 24122
plued| ] . - R December 30, 2023
1) 4,411 4 A0 Decembser 30, 2024

P 729462 * . F 130% P 64,802

NOTE 28 - LEASES

Compamy o a lessee

The Company entered into lease agreement with Makati Comerstone Leasing Corp. for the lease of
ils office in Makati City. Lease payments are made every Ist of the month, The agreement also
pravides rental deposit amounting to P185.796 and #184,550 us of December 31, 2023 and 2022,

respectively.
The Company's incremental bormowing rate used i the computation of lease liability is 5.95%.
Right of wse asvel

An analysis of the movement m this account follows:

2023 2022
Begmning balance r 300,016 P adnn2e
Addition
Depreciation expense 240012 240,012

Ending balance r 00,004 r 300,016
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Leave lichilify

An anabysis of the movement in this account follows:

2023 y 2022
Beginning balance r ng4Ts 0w 556,770
Addition ¥ :
Pavmsent 1528758 238,205
Ending balaws P G5 600 P 318,475

A maturity analysis of bease liability at December 31, 2023 and 2022 follows:

2023

Withim 1 year | o2 Years 2o} Yewrs Total
Lease payments r 66,252) P - F - r 64,232)
Tmberest ex ponsss - {652} : {632}
Met present vahwes T atongy P - r . r GBS 600}
022

Within 1 vear 1102 Years 2t 3 Years Totul
Leass payments 4 265,008y P 66,252 r . | K e
Imlereal cupenses {12,133} (652} (12,785}
Net present values P JS1ETS) P G5.600 P - P 31RATS

Additlonal Profit or Lovs amd Cosh Flow Informafion

The total cash outflow in respect (o this bease amounts (o P265,008 and F263,008 in 2023 and
2022, reapectively, Interest expense i relation te lease liabilitses amounted 1o P12,133 in 2023
ad P20, 717 in 2022 and are presented as part of Finance Costs in the stalesment of comprehensive
income.

MOTE 19- RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
The Comparry, in the normal course of business, has transactions witl related partics. Presenied

below are the specific relationship, amount of mansacton, account balances, e and comdilions
and the nature of the consideration 1o be pravided in settlement.

2023
=i Ammaunt
Muture of Mature of {current Dutstandieg
Relatsonship Transaction _ bransacthon} balaes Terms Conditions
Starehalders .
and relaisd Buying F 450800 P54 626
ineres Selling, 11,935,138 2086367 (2} L]

(1) Nos-uderext hearing, papabie iv caslt me seheaile repeymnessts iEmT

(1) Now-inksriat braring. poweble be cavh, payable in heo (21 da)s gller frasnectios dak (=2
(s

) Seowred By eopiy SecrInes
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2022
Amoaani
Walure of Wanore aof (curréts Dul=tareding
HKelmiceship __Tramsadtion transaciion) kelerca Terms Condilons
Shameholklas
and related Buying Pi33E2925  P5633.998
inberest seling _ _ 38116323 176963 (3} ]

({0 Maveiseren beoring Mﬂﬂrmnmhmrrkﬂfuﬁf FITal s ferer

) Nus-inierert beorieg. payeable i ek, pevebie de tree (1) deye Sler tramnaring e | T
5} Lwanncuead

fil  Feowred by cquahy secarinies

Biying and Seiling Transacivon

In the ordinary course of business, the Company acts a3 broker to cerain directors and officers.
Upder the Compary’s policy, these transactions &re madle substantially on the same terms as with
raher businesses of comparnble rigks, In 2023 and 2022, the Companys cutstanding receivable and
outstanding payahle is presented as part of Receivables from customers {Payable to customers),
respectively, in the statements of financial position.

Key Mimogemen! Compensation

The compensation paid by the Company W key manngemunl personmel ag at December 31, 2023
and 2022 consist of the following:

2023 2022

Short-term emplovee benefits r 444,516 r 456,545
Post-emploviment benefits - o .
r 444 526 r 456,548

NOTE 31 - FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Company is exposed 1o a varety of financial risks which result from both ns opernting and
isvesting activities. The Company’s risk management i coordinated with the Board of [hrectors,
1ind Focuses on actively securing the Company's short-to-medium lerm cash flows by minimizing
the exposure to financial markets. Long-term financial investiments are mannged 10 penemte lasting
retharns.

The Company's risk management policss ang established 1o identify and analyze the risks faced by
the Company, 10 8¢t appropriate risk limits and coatrols, and to monitor risks amd adherencs 10
Timits. Risk manngement policies and syslems are reviewed regularly (o reflect changes in market
conditions and the Company™s business activities, The Company, through its truining and
management standands and procedurcs, nims to develop a disciplined and constructive control
eovironment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations,

The must significant fisancinl ks 1o which the Company is exposed to are described below:
Market Risk
The Company is exposed o market risk through its use of financial instraments and specilically to

forcign currency risk, igerest mbe risk and centaim other price risk which result from both (i1
perating, investing and finpncing ackivities.
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A Fareign Carrency

All transactions of the Company are denominated in Philippme pesa, its functivnal currency. The
Compuny's exposure relates primurily to its dollar denominated bank deposit amounting. o
P711.%61 ond PTIR.B72 25 at December 31, 23 and 2022, respectively. Tho Company’s expasure
of foreign currency risk is nod significant.

B. Price Risk

The Company’s market price risk arlses from ils investmsents carried at fir valoe [ic. fimaneial
qssets classified as financial assets at FVPL and FVOCI). The Company mansiges Cxposures 1o
price risk by moaitoming the changes in the market price of tho investments and al some exLEnt,
diversifying the investmend portfolio in avcordance with the limit set by management.

For listed cquity securities, an average volatility of 14% and 21% has been absgrved during 2023
and 022, respectively, The table below summarizes the sensitivity of the Company profit before
tax b the oheerved volatility rates of the fair values.,

2023 2002
Ohserved Volatility Rates T 2100 21 00%
Profit befre tax P gITIZ P (6XTIL P SOLEIO P (591810)
Exquity IS (731,574) 2,275,267 (2,275,267)

The assumed price volatilities used in the sensitvily arsalysis repeesent the defined ghift used by the
Company ta manage price risk based on the historical performance of equity securitics,

¢ Inferesi Rele Risk

The Company s policy is 1o minimize interest rate cash flow risk expasunes om leag-term financing.
Longer-term horrowings ane {herefore usually made at fixed rates, Al December 31, 2023 and 2022,
the Company is expased to changes in market inbesest mics through its cash s bank bormowings,
witich ane subject fo varioble interest rates (Nales 6 and 200, All ather financial assels and linbilities
have fixed rates.

The tahle below illustrates thi sensitivily of the Company's profit before fax and equity 10 &
reasonably possible change in interesl raies of +i- 1.00% for Philippine peso in 2023 and 2002,
respectively, These clanges are considered 1o be reasonably possible based on ohservation of
current market conditions. The calculations are tased on o change in the average market inlsrest
rate for ¢ach period, and the financial nstruments held at the end of each reporting period that are
sensilive to changes in interest rates. All ather varinbles are held constant.

1023 2022
L% L00% 1.00% - LA
Profit belon: 1ax o {146,269} 146269 P {9, B08) 9_H0H
Equiry (10%,702) 1iF, 02 (7,356) 7,356

Credit Risk

Credit risk i (e risk that a counterparty may fail 1o discharge an chligation 1o the Conpany- The
Company is exposed to this risk for various financial instraments arising from selling services 1o
customers including related parties and placing deposits with banks.
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The Company continuously monitors defaulis of customers and edher counterparties, identified
cither individisally or by growup, and incorperase this information lnto its credit risk contruls. Tl
Company’s palicy is to deal only with creditworthy counterparties. In addition, for a significant
propontion of sales, advance payments are received o mitigate credit risk. Accordingly, the
Company's exposure to bad debts &5 not significant.

With respect 1o credit risk arising from other financial assets of the Company, which comprise cash
and cash cquivalents and refundable deposits, the Company’s exposure to credit risk arises from
default of the coanlerparty, with a maximum ciposure equal to the camrying Amourt af these
instruments. The Company limits ils exposure to credit risks by depositing its cash anly with
financial instiations duly evaluated and approved by the BOD, The Company's exposund 060 rental
deposit is mimimal since no defaull in payments were maxle by the counterparties.

The Company's receivable From customers related (o unsecured and partially secured socount 1=
actively monitored to avoid significant concentrations of credit risk. A aubstantial portion of the
Campany’s receivable from customers is secured by shares of stocks listed and trded in the PSE
and lodged with Philippine Depositery and Trust Corporation (PIXTC) under the accourt of the
Company.

The table belaw s an analysis of receivables from customers is as folloows:

2023 {Based on the New RBCA Template)

T Caliateral [':':‘_’f:“" P ——— Nt
£ 1lu|l:|rhwul']._ Jafter cnilsteral) credin lrase ENpLAUTY

TieTl ol
camicTparty | 127,733 F 3435855 " L0, 133) 3 . |
1424 Tel2 al
Tauntrrparty - =
T+13 m T=3
o ECAIEr Rty
Boyand T+3 of
et nilerpariy J6TLESD AT 2,683, 618) 1825,1%

Po3A00E1 F 37RLIZS F {5,591, 743) F LA2513 F
i |

Csamierpaaly
Culeid Al rreemneee B Het
e it of hairut e coadli nsmes capamire

T T+l o
couvrany Fo4TIL R ¥ 5555003 F {5 0PF3, TT F - r
THimT+13 el
Cous bl PRy THL2ET 508 51E 14, B4, 2310 (R
Beyond T+13 el
sousterorcy 3 RS, |1 RRSRY S0y 27945

“w 514721 P 7LAFIZZ (17,490 54} Y I

The Company continuously menitors defaulis of customers and othar counterparties, identified
either individually or by group, and incorpoeate this mformation info its credit risk controls, The
Company trades only with recognized and creditworthyy third parhes. 1t is the Compary's policy
that all customers are subject to credit verification procedures.

I respect of receivahle from customers and clearing house and other receivables, the Company is
not exposed to any significant credit nsk exposuse to any single counterparty of any proup of
counterparises having similer characteristics.

The table below shows the maximuem exposure io gredit risk for the componeils of the stabements
of financial pasition. The maximsm exposure is shown at gross ameunt, without taking indo account
collateral and other credit enhancement.
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M-Dec-23 3] -Thec-22

Cach and cash equivalents r 13,839 562 P 12,721,465
Receivahle from customers 3,801,582 50147218
Ciihver receivahles 120,591 1246, 456
Kefundable deposis 1B5HPS X 184 550
r lTiﬂﬂiﬁ-}n P 1B 179,729

Carh exeludor party cach fung end covte on hord awounting Je PLSOO0 [ 2023 aed 2022

Mame of the Company™s finuncial assets are secured by collatern! or ather credit enlsancements,
expept for cash as descnbed bekow,

fe € caxh comed Cerele Egiavalenis

The credit risk for cash and cash equivalents 1s considered negligible, since the counlerparties are
reputable hanks with high guality external credit ratings. Included in the cash and cash equivalents
are cash in banks and rime deposits which are mnsured by the Philippine Depostt Insurance
Carporation up 1o a maximum coverage of #500,0040 for every depasitor per banking imstitution.

(i) Receivahies from Cusiomers

The Company trades anly with recognized and credit worthy thind parties. In accordance with
RBCA requirensents, limits are imposed 1o avoid barge exposures to a single clhient or counterparty,
sinegle debt issue and single equity issuc relative to a particular Bssuer company and its group of
companies. As a result, maximum credit risk, without taking into sccount the fair value of any
collateral and netting agreements, is limited to the amounts in the statements of financial positicn,

A substantial portion of the Company”s Receivable from Customyers is secured by shares of stocks
(Mote £,

The Company applics the provision of SRC Rules $2.1.11 and Risk Based Capital Adequacy in
measuring Credit Losses.

ies of 20231

To measisre the credit losses, receivables wene classified hased on the provision of SRC Rule Mo,
$1.L.11.2 s follows:

Classification
T-H) o T2
T3 ta T#13

T+14 o T+30
T+31 up

The credil loss rates are based on the provision of SRC Rule No. 52.1.11.3 as follows;

Classification Provision Inse
T+0 1o T=0 10 T+2 0 Total Receivables (TR)
T+3 to T=1 to T+13 % TR
T+14 1o T+14 o T+30 11 TR less collateral (nel of haircut)

T+l up 1M TR less collateral {net of haircut)
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r R (wiier b il 5 i Clircular ex of ML

T'o mcssure the credit lasses, receivables were classified hased on the provision of SRC Rule No.
52.1.11.2 as follows:

CInssilicalion

T+ 40 T+1
I+t T+12
T+13 1o T+3

T+31 up

The credit loss rates are based on the provision of SRC Rule Mo, 52.1.11.3 as fllows

atiam fisgi i Base
T+ 1o TH o T+ ] Toinl Becezivables (TR
T+2 10 T+2 io T+I2 2% ™"
T+13 1 T+13 to T+3D 0% TR less enllateral {net of kaircut)
T+31 up LM TR less collnteral {net of haircut)

The credit less were computed by getling, for each doubtful sccount nn amoant equivalent 1o the
prevision of the amount cutstanding net of collateral (net of haircut). Basis for the computation
would be the individus| accounts,

{e) Chther receivables and refimdable deposits

“The credit rigk for other receivables and refundshbe deposits are considered negligible and thersfore
the lnss allowanee is to be determined using the general appreach. The amount of ECL is nat
significant due to the [act that the collectability of contradtual cash fows expected from theso
financial instruments is reasonahly assured except for the P85,000 of which allowance for cradit
loases fins alresdy been set-up.

Liguidity Risk

Liguidity risk is generally defined as the current and prospective risk to parnings of copital arising
fram the Company's inability to moeet its obligation when they come due without recarring
unacceptahle kosses or coats.

The Compamy manages its liquidity needs by carefully menitoriag cash inflkews amd cash outflows
dise in day-to-day business, Liquidity needs are monitored in vasious time bands, on a duy-to-day
and wieek-to-week hasis, as well ns on the hasis of rolling 30-day projection. Long-term Tiguidicy
needs for a G-month and ane-year period are identified manthly.

The Compasny maintains cash 10 meet fis liquidity requirements for up to G0-day perrods. Excess
cash are normally invested in short-term placements. Funding for long-term liquidity needs could
be scurced through available credit faciliiies.

Company’s payahbe tn cuslomsars is nommally settbed within two (2) doys in 2023 and within threz
{30 davs in 2022, Other payalbles are normally settled within one (1) vear after reporting date.

The fallowing table presents the matority profile of the Company”s financinl habilities as e
December 31, 2023 and 2022 based on contractual undiscounted payments.
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i = * E0B14.9%3 rF F r F Ihald, 53
Mongege ;
Sarsels RS 110 1A51249% 1,347,596 4S5 13,319,151
Levese liahility fh 252 hda2 LR §04 i 251 130, 260
OHhar payables £71.38% = 571,383

F 10.511.280 Fo1.300,308 P 1.480,100 L L s FoMAMAZS

NOTE 31 - CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Company’s objective in managmg capital is to ensure that a stable capital base is maintained
in accordance with industry regulations while maintzining investor, ereditor, and market confidence
to sustain the fitare development of the business.

The Company’s BOD has the overall responsibility for monitesing capital propostan bar rigks. The
Associated Person designated by the Company moniters complisnce with minimum capital
requirements imposed by PSE and SEC.

The Company, being a broker/dealer in securitics, is regulated by PSE and SEC and subject to the
following capital requirement in necordance with the Securities Regulatony Commissson (SRC).

Risk Baved Cupital Adequacy Keguiremens

Rased on SEC Memorandum Circalar No. 16, the Company i required an RBECA ratio of grester
than or equal to 1.1. The RBCA ratio is computed by dividing Company”s Net Liquid Capital (NLC}
la ite Tozal Risk Capitl Requirement (TRCR). TRCR is ibe sum of: a) Operational Risk
Requirensens (ORR); b) Credit Risk Requirement which include requirements for Counterparty
Risk, Settlement Risk, Large Exposure Risk, and Margin LendingFirancing Risk; and ¢} Pesition
or Market Risk Requirement,

On August B, 2023, the SEC approved amendments to the 2015 Implementing Hules and
Regulations of the Securities Regulation Code (the #2015 SRC Rules™) and SEC Memorandam
Circular (MC) Mo, 16, series 2004, relative to the settlement cycle from T+3 o T+1

The Company's KBCA ratio as at years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 are Z1% and 200%,
respectively.
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Dretails of computation of the Company’s Risk Based Capital Adequacy Ratio are shown below:

23 2022
Ned linguidd cajrital
Equity eligible for net ligusd capital 4 49,601,924 r R, 733,887
Incligible assets 45 830,060 40,823,510
Total 3,781 868 40,911,977
Risk capital requirensents
Operational risk requirement 2 4440 F £05,950
Position risk requineimsid 13515103 15,205,451
Counterparty risk - 036
Largs caposure risk 3250984 4,466,5H)
Tatal F 17006533 P 20484988
Risk hosed capital adequacy ratio 1% s
Net Ligwid Capited

The Company is required, ot all times, o have and maintain 8 Net Liquid Capital (MLC) of five

miiflicn (P 380 or 5% of itz Aggregate Indebtedress (Al), whichever is hagher.

In computing for WLC, all non-allowable ssset’equities, and collateralized linbilities will be

declsciid and allowable linbilities and cquities nre adided 10 equity per books.

Details of Company NLC as of years ended Decensber 31, 2023 and 2072 are shawn helow:

=] 2022

Mt liguid capital r 3,751 868 40911977
Less: Required net ligquid capital, higher of:

5% aggregate indebtedness 758,811 391,902

Mimenvum amount L ER T 5,000,000

Required net liguid capital Sy lW, 00 5,00, 000

Net risk-based capital excess P (1,248.131) ¢ 35011997

Ratio of ageregate indebtedness o wet lquid capital 1% Fa

Tota! Risk Copdfal Requiremens
Dietnil of TRCR follows:

A, Operetiona Risk

It is the exposure that is associated with commencing and remaining in business arising separately
fram exposures covered by other risk requiremens. 11 15 the nsk of lass resulting from inadequate
of failed internal process, peaple and systems which melude, among others, risk if fraud, operational

ar setilement fuilure and shartage of liguid resources, or from extemal events.
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Ralow is the manual computation af operational risk requirensent for the last throo yoars:

Hevenue i L | L Avernge
MM [eveIes r 15654, 655 r 130 A P I IHILARD P L300.671
Infenest income 13,569 25,m04 37,031 27203

Het Reoivory (roem
rrearkeet decline: of <
harkeintle Saaritie: i 5

Crevrand

Deilianl iresme el R Y | 140271 TEE R 223454
Cain on Sobe of R, 1o LIRSS . 01,672
Marketahle Socuritics

{igln o Sale ol oller =

Megels

Onhet iscoeneirevenue 74042 44,144 o 3R,12K
Talzd BovisueTnenms 5,073,445 5, 715.411 1T, R34

Averape of the e teree e
WERr grevs INEme

Chperationel risk Btor ; = P
Total cperaticsal risk

requirem e F Rl s

The Company”s Coere Equity should, at all times, be greater than ifs Operational Risk Requirement.

Care Equity refers o the sum of paid-up common stock, common stock dividends distributabe,
additional paid-in capital, surplis reserves exchuding revalustion reserves or appraisal copital, axd
opening retained earnings adjusted for all current year movements. Lons Equity shall exclude
reasury shares and unbooked valuation reserves and other capital adjustments (such as unrealized
gain in value of FVOCI).

The Company has no operational risk exposure since its Core Equity is preater than the operational
rigk requirement as calculnted

B Posliion Rivk

The Company is exposed to equity security price risk becauss of investments held and classified in
Fair Vahie through Profit or Lass. The Company is not exposed to commodity price risk. To mannge
its peice risk arising from investments in cquity securities, tlse Company diversifies its partfolio,
Diversification of the portfolic is done in sccordance with the limits set by the managemsnt.

Below is the manual computation of pesition risk requirement as of the years December 31, 2023
and 2K

2023
Tatal Marlket
Valuwe of Fasitinn Risk Paosition Risk
__Instrument Factors  _ Reguirement
Equities in PHISIX r 82001446 25% P 2050362
Oither equities outside the FITISIX 32584688 35% 11,403,591
FX Position Ted, 381 A% 61,150

P 41550515 F 13515103
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2022
Total Market
Value of Positicn Risk Prsitson Hik
Instrumsent Factors Requirement
Equitics in FHISIX P 1138651 25% 1, 784658
Other equities outside the PHISIX 38,168,713 15% 13,350,057
FX Pasition = 771,712 B 61,737
P 46079076 P 15205452

A Large Fxporure Rivk

[f i3 a risk to which a hroker dealer 18 exposed to 2 single equity secunity or single isseer group. This
is the maximum permissible lasge exposure and calculated as a percentage of core equity.

The Company has a Large Exposure to single equity relative to a particular issuer company and its
aroug of companies amounting 1o B3 250984 and P4, 466,550 as of December 31, 2023 and 2022,
respectively, which is not beyond the maximum permissible large exposure,

B Counerpariy Risk Exposure

Unsettled customer trades {arising from customer-1o-broker agency relationship)- A counterparty
expasure of this kind accurs when a) the customer poses the possible risk of failing e deliver
securities on n sell contract or b) the customer poses the possible risk of failing to pay cash on a buy
cantract,

Unsettled principal trades (arising from broker-to-broker or broker-to-exchange/clearing agency
relationslips). A counterparty exposune risk of this kind cccurs when a) the broker dealer poses the
possible risk of filing receive cash from is counterparty on a sell contract or b) the broker dealer
poses the possible risk of failing  receive the securities from its counterparty ¢ a buy contrast.
Diebts/loans, contra losses and other amaunis due- A broker dealer bas a counterparty exposure il
debtloan, receivable from a customer/client, contra loss, or any olber amount due is nol paid on 118
ngresd duwe date. [n the case of a contra loss, the due date shall be the date of the contr.

The Company has counler party exposure amounting to Pail and P6,036 in 20Z3 and 2022,
respectively.

As at December 31, 2022, the Company i% in compliance with Risk Dased Capital Adequacy
Requiremuenl

As al December 31, 2023, the Company was not able to meet the required Risk Based Capital
Adequacy Ratie. This is due to the new computation implemented Inst August 2023 wherein the
FWOUCT was deducted at market price a3 ineligible asset ad the cumulative gain of the same FYOC]
was also deducted from the equity in the computation of Met Liguid Capital.

NOTE 32 - FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

The fair value is the price that would be received 10 sell an asset or pasd 1o transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction in the principal (or most advantageous) market at the measurement date under
the current market condition regardless of whether the price is directly chservable or estimated
using another valuation techniqus,

The following tuble presents the carrying amounts and fair values of the Company’s awmsels arvd
lishilities measured at fair value and for which fair values are disclosed, and the cormesponding tair
value hierarchy:
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(ffetsing of Financiol Assers and Flnancial Liahilities

I'he following financinl assets and financial liabilities with net smount presented in the stasements
of financial position ore subject 1o offsetting. enforceable matter netting arrangements andd similar
arrangements:

Lirgas amounts recognised in e

statements of financial pasition Mel amouad presenbed in

Fluancial statement aff financial
Finnnrinl psseiy Liabalithes parsilisa
Deecembeer 31, 2032
Paymhble t3 chemring house r - r 124, F 1205910
[ecember 31, 2022
Payatle 4o clesring hiooss P 10 5 I3 ik S[HI P 244 QiMi

NOTE 33 - RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

Presented beloow is the reconeiliation of the Company's lishilitics arising from financing activities,
which includes hoth cash and non-cash changes,

[
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NOTE 34 - SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION REQUIED BY THE BUREAU OF
INTERMAL REVENUE

Presented below and in the succeeding pages is the supplementary infeemation which i requared
by the Bureau of Internal Revenue (BIR) under Revenue Regulation [RR) No, 11:2D|U and 34-
3020 to disclosed as part of the notes to financial statements.  This supplementary infermation is
il & required disclosure under FFRS.

The information on laxes, duties ond license fees paid or secrued during the taxable year requined
under KR No. 15-2019 sre presented below and in the suceesding pages.
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Hevenue Regulation 15-20040
al Ot FAT
In 2023, the Company declared cutput VAT as follows:

T Bnse Catpiat VAT

Taxnble Sales (Commission Revenue) r 351,396 P 421,288

The tax hases are included as part of [ncome in the 2023 statement of comprebensive income.

B frper FAT

Movement in input VAT for the year ended December 31, 2023 follew:

Purchases = Impaut VAT
Balance, beginning of yenr r P 1,331,36%)
Domestic parchase of goods amd services 1,150,347 138,042)
Total available Input VAT 1,469,410)
Add: Payments during the year )
Application ngninst VAT payable (42,238
Balance, end of the year F o L4aT 12

¢l Tozes and Licenses

The details of Toves and Licenses account {(Mote 24) are braken doown as fallows:

Amaount

Business permit amd licenses ¢ 75,586
Registration fee bl
P 76,086

The amounts of faxes and licenses shawn above are included under the operating expenses in the
statements of comprehensive inconse.

i Witkholding Teses

The details of tatal withholding txes for the venr emded December 31, 2023 are show bl

Ammount

Withholding tax at source (expanded) r 29,265
Withbokding tax on compensation 30,733
r 1,000

gl Tar Assessments and Cases

As of reporting date, the Company has no pending lax cases unider preliminary mmvestigation,
litlgation and/or prosecution in court of bodies within or outside BIR.

i Related Parly Tronsacrion

The Company is covered under Section 2 of the Revenue Regulation 34-2020 requirements and
procedures for related party transaction, including filing of BIR Form 170%, Information Ketem an

its Transactions with Related Party.



SCHEDULE D

CUALOPING SECURITIES CORPORATION
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN LIABILITIES
SUBORDINATED TO CLAIMS OF GENERAL CREDITORS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED December 31, 2023

The Company has ne subordinated liabilities as of December 31, 2023



CUALOPING SECURITIES CORPORATION

SCHEDULE IT

RISK BASED-CAPITAL ADEQUACY WORKSHEET PURSUANT TO
SEC MEMORANDUM CIRCULAR NO. 16, AS AMENDED, THROUGH SEC

MEMORANDUM CIRCULAR NO. 11, SERIES OF 2023

DECEMBER 31, 2023
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SCHEDULE I

CUALOPING SECURITIES CORFORATION
INFORMATION RELATING TO POSSESSION OR CONTROL REQUIREMENTS
LUMIMER AFPENDIX F OF SHC RULE 49.2,1
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMEER 31, 2023

|. Customers’ fully paid securities and excess margin securities ol in the broker's or
dealers’ possession or control as of the report date {for which instnsctions to reduce 1o
possession of comtrol Bad been isswed as of the report date) but for which the reguired

2clions was not taken by respondent within the time frame specified under SRC Rule
49.2-1:

TR -, BT 115 1o b | S e N = -mil-

P O B L L i i ks Weand 1 otk P nil-

=

. Customeers' fielly paid securities and excess margin securities for which instructions o
reduce 1o possession of control had sl boen issued as of the report date, excluding
atems anising from "temporary bags which result frem normal business operations” &5
permitted under SR mule 49.2-

B R N O R o L i e o m e o B i e A e * -nil-

M B L e e e E -til-




SUHEDMULE IV

CUALOPING SECURITIES CORPORATION
COMPUTATION FOR DETERMINATION OF RESERVE REQUIREMENTS
UNDER SRC RULE 49.2
DECEMBER 31, 2023

Particulars _1 Credirs Dihies 1

I.  Freseredit halance: sl oiher crodit balance in customers’
ECLRANITY Bt pammis,

4 Monkes bormowed collateralized by securities carried for the
account af cusiomer s

3. Monies payvable agaiear customers” securities leaned.

4, Cpsbamers’ securidies foiled o recel, 1200 G
3, Credil balances in firm accopsds which ane asributable to
principal sales ta customer.

g Market value of mock dividends, sieck splits and similar
distribastions neceivable oulstanding over 30 calendar duys o,

7. Market value of the short security count differences over 30
cabemdar days ali.

R Market value of short secarities and credits {rot bo be offsat hy
long ar by debdes) inall SUSPHEIS0 ACcounts over 3o calendar days.

B, 121524

0, Market value of scouritics which arg in transfir in excess of 40
calendar days and have not been confirmed 1o be in ransfer by the
Traalir gl or the issuer dumng the 40 days.

10, Tkt balances in customers” cagh or margin aceounts excluding

ansecured necoans and accounts doewbibul of colbeciian. Gl

11, Securities bomowed to effectuae shon sales by customer and

eecurities borrowed to make delivery on customers' securities failed

B duliver,

12, Failed o deliver customers” securitics nod older than 30 calendar

days.

13, Others:
Tl [ B.252.224 SB-E:HJ-
Wt Credin (Dhelin) T 508,710

Required Reserve { 100% of pet credis [f making & weekly compatation

land 105% if mosthlyy 7,733,996




SCHEDULE ¥

CUALOPING SECURITIES CORPORATION
REFORT DESCRIBING MATERIAL INADEQUACIES FOUND TO EXIST
OR FOLUND TO HAVE EXISTED SINCE THE PREVIOUS AUDIT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMEER 31, 2023

Mo matenal weakness in the internal comtrol or material insdequacies in the practices and
procedures for safeguarding securities were found since the date of previous report.



SCHEDULE V1

CUALOPING SECURITIES CORPORATION
KEFORT OF MONTHLY SECIUTRITIES COUNT COMNDUCTED PURSUANT TO

SRC RULE 5L.1-10, AS AMENDED
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 223

There i mo discrepancy in the result of the securitics count conducted. Refer to the attached

SUTRITATY.



Cualoping Securities Cotporation

THE PHILIPPINE Member: Philippine Stock Exchange, Inc.
STOCK EXCHANGE
Inc.

OATH

REPUBLIC OF THE PHILIPPINES)
MAKAT! CITY )S.S.

L, Janet Presquito, Associated Person of CUALOPING SECURITIES CORPORATION
do solemnly swear that all matters set forth in this summary of securities count for the month
ended December 31, 2023 are true and correct to the best of my knowledge and belief.

Associated Person

APR 3 0 202

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me, a Notary Public, this - dayief 5
2/ and

affiant exhibiting to me her @L‘ﬁ’ LDZ-J’I-M_\'I:Zssued at mz,ii’ on Mml 23 2z/

date expired on ) 2/y

"~ Doc. No. 3’»1“ v

= , ATTY ROMEO
Page No~._0%- Notary Publi
Book No._ 3% Untif Decemibg
: Appointment No \¥i-032 (2024-2025)
z Ll 3
sl iy PTR o 10073908 Jan 2 2024 Makt: City

I3F Ne 391330 Jan 3 2014 Pasig.’ Roli No 27932
MCLE NO VE-8027570 issued April 3. 2023
101 Urbar: Ave Campos Ruedz Bldg.
Brgy Pic De! Pilar. Makati City

Unit 061 Level 3 Ayala Malls Circuit, Hippodromo St., Brgy. Carmona, Makati City 1207 ® Exchange Nos. 7791-4378 * 7940-6082  Fax 7750-72-70 Office Nos. 7750-72-70 * 8522-0293




23*355 q ) E
-i i pEd i :
E;ng‘ggiﬁggaégégfagi i
1 !igl!??*gg i i
IEEE H Ei'%-iig o
T 'E_’!E ’E ng E
H| K %
i
st e s b s
EE ELED g _EE SR S HEE £ EEL e EE ER '
A B i fhiidies st ittt E%EEEE_:%%E%‘F
|
] R o BB et Hi!--i"iuﬁ i i 8 A IE
:
31173 LRRSY | JARRRTS || 1 SURRRRRRR] |y I IS T e P EE
a fsziz £z TEEup s EEaNE .00 B E: .o =P Ei ii
;EsssiﬁaéhiaigfsézﬁﬁaaéEﬁ;EEﬁaéeﬁisﬁrzi;EiaiEn*%ézEf?ieﬁaﬁzisfﬁzEl?.g igg
I E
ezERHERE: B RE e i Eﬁ'-iEiEEEEfEEE:ﬂiEEHﬂEE-Hiﬁ%ijﬁ"E i
.................. b i A R ;,
2
i
______________ i R LA o)

A rEL i




Fill L. DO RAL ST Ol T
%%EE
TG ] 00 IEREGN sl EE ] iimm [CN Y] LS Y]
H HEY L e [ e ek T
R ETELE] o] T 1 LT
AT s S - o R A 1AL
Tiea it = = namm Eat S
Teo L [N LTH - CEFL) ] ERT 1Y
T [T 1 =
IO - - LS
= [IESTE ] - . Mo | B
- - + o Lol L] L]
[T LFL L iTH [ ] .- ey
el R ] & Eoamen [k
T BT ] rriE ] I o
- . - ' T 5
ey s - . e (e
A T - - RS AR
[P [EF E L] ]
[P LIS T ' s AT a0
T T s . [ i
- FLERLTE Habs B mn FE-
T I R R 1.0 B | L
et - - - HE L] Et ]
A ETyad 1 X = e e
s mie & [T ] LE]
AT T [[ET T s
e A - -] P
L - - - Fv e L]
[ =T LE R o - . R
R E L} & Easm (T8
SHLE ETL T L IaalEs o, O
] g - SR |
T et . ME L] fL-T ]
mMHTE ] . i L X
B . Fo ' i fHs .
T LELLE ] Ml &4 A
= A - L IEHER
el R i - fmem L
YL LN o] ol O - LT ] R
T HEHE (LRI s i
- 1 - i i
1 L] - oL EEE
LTS FIT TR E Y a H e o
HEHLT LI L] i aa il LT
= . [ A :
1A e [T e
s . - - ECE] =
AL MR . s I
k1. 4 e - . s o
=T EEE T d i -
LERT LT B i
SAEEL ETLE T - - ET BN S PR
L n [INEE ] . . oo mE
L [ - W T E
[y == 8 i & - [TRTY s
il Ak dilie al i i i EEE-E-
IR E [ E TR i E T |-
T s . B i
e wmmn - . (LT ] T
T FEET r g 5 i
EFRILE [TFETL Ham N BRI i
ER TS [ECE ] (i E FT LTS ST
e 1y - . T FET.]
b s anin - rERE £l
el dhmne . e L]
TR IR E LT e
ATHIE L - LTI [
-prr ) o Dk ARIH HE=T]
L . T LR -
AR [ 1
W HCEHE] ML it 1 S (0
armEr it - L B (BN
et thealem - LA RTE ] ITHLET
[P P T e -
R Yk & S 4rin

ST S L S R




WW:;WWW

! tﬂ &
R s i

e o B '?““ ----- Ll Bk i al

- RGET E"'Ei"?gi"'i"'E"" BB "'gi'i'ﬁl"" N

1"
Wil s,

Gttt pt i Bt 2 b ndnmtn sheelihiE b

VOl "H A Sy e
L e e R E TR RS I TR, 8% Y




Eiiﬂigiigfigg ;;5;1; E{gi i

|
hﬁaii'*iﬁi i

.|.-'-

i

§ Baire!
i‘! ﬂg gll E

<k
mtﬁn_—iﬂﬁmnm——

Efii!ﬂi:&'i; bbb ettt nasn

Lt :EEEI?E it srili 3af15 I8

iE§E=§5§E§i§




CUALOPING SECURITIES CORPORATION

SUFPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE
REVISED SRC RULE &&

FINANCIAL SOUNDNESS INDNUCATORS

Far The Years Ended December 31, 2023 and 2022

Cherrens KHalio

Todnl current asseis
Todal currend liahdlities
Currenl matio

(heick Raio

Taotal liquid asset
Total current lshilities
Duick mafio

Working Capltal to Torel dsver
Working capiral

Tolsil Azses
Working canital malie

Jalvency Rarie

Mel income (loss) after rax = Deprecintion
Total lahilities
Solvemcy ratio

Debi-to-ggueity Ratio

Tatal liakilities

Total equity
Crebd-in-equity ratio

SCHEDULE ¥iI

025 22
a . e T o 62 ARG 038
17,832,574 [ I L
N.258:1 4. 324:1
2013 20232
P 55T sMm P 60,510,281
17 HIL, ST 14, 4%, %9 ]
EI-.lI'i':I- 4. 1741
2025 2022
r 40,249,652 P 48,189,047
116,784,372 117,338,433
0,345:1 QA 010:0
i3 2022
P (3,659313) P (2,628,321)
25,601 605 25,135,293
lﬂ.l-ﬂ-El ((ER Y H |
2023 22
r 25,600,608 P 25,135,293
91,182,767 92,403,142
0.281:1 0.272:1



CUALOPING SECURITIES CORPORATION
SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE
REVISED SRC RULE 63

FINANCIAL SOUNDNESS INDICATORS
For The Years Ended December 51, 2023 and 2022

Asser-fo-rgudn: Ragio

Tatal assets
Tortal exquity
Asset in equil].r ratin

farerest Rale Coverage Suarie

Pre-tax profit (loss) before imerest

Imlerest experse
Imler=st rase radico

Prafisability Rattos

i) Refers on assel radio

Mer income (ks after tax
dovempe nsssts

b Retirn on equily rario

et inogme (loss) after fax
Average equily

a4} et Profit Margls

Met prafit {loss) after ox
Rewerue

SCHEDULE Y11

2Nk} 202

3 116,784,372 P 117,538,435
91,182,767 92403, 142

1.281:1 1,272
033 )
r (5324343 ¥ (2,759.633)
(1,076 384) (969,358)

4,047 20
Hiz3 p |
r (4,056,375 P {3,012935)
117,161,404 | 24,855.337

L {0.035):1 (0.024):1
203 202
* (4056375 P (3.4012,5%35]
91,703 055 ag.270,110

(10441 SIJ.I]JII;']

2023 2023

r (4,056,375 P (3,002, 935)
(060 1.WER, 704

‘l-i'l'l:l-_ fljlﬁ




RECERNUTLIATIN OF RETAINED EARNINGS AV AILANLE FIOE DIYVIDENTD DECLARATION

Far the Heporting Period Ended December 31, 2023

CUALOPING SECURITIES CORPORATION

Uit 6 FLavel 3 Ayaba Malls Circuit, Hipedroms Street Cirenit Makati, Brzy, Carmeoan Makati Ciey

Unappropristed Retaimed Earnimgs, beginning of repertiog perisd

Add:  Caeepory &: Ttems that are directly eeedited fo U nappropriated
Retnined Earmings
* Binenal of Beained Eomings Apowopriation’s
= Effect of resttements or prioe-period adjestmanis
& o mlaEi

T.501. 003

Less:  Category I ltems that are divectly debited to Unappropristed
Hetained Earnisgs
* Dividends declaration during the reporting perled
= Rutaianl Enmings sppeopriaied during ¥ repoding period
* Effect of restalements oo prior-perind adjusiments
» (thers

Lnappreprinted Retained Enrmings, as asjusied
AddLess: Net Income {Lass) Fer ke cureend year

Laws:  Category C.1: Unrealized incsssc recopnioed in the predid or
lngs during the reporiing period (net of tax)

Equity in net income of associaleGoin venlune, sl of dividends declarel

* Linnalizal foreign exchange gain, exega thoss: aliribegablo be cash and
zsh equivalends

+ Ulnrzalized fair value adjustment {mickot-lo-macket gaire) of financlal
instroments ai fair value (krough profit o loss (FYTPL)

* Unrealioed foir vebee gain of Investment Property

* Ueher unreslized gains o adfstments o retained carsimps i o resull of
ceTinm raesastions scpsnbed (or under the PFRS

(3.3,

ToS51005

(4086,575)

& Suh-todal

Add:  Category (2.2 Unrealized mcome recognized is ihe profit sr

bt fin prier reporting pevbads hud realized in the current

reparting period (oel of fnx)

+ Renlized foreign excBange pain, except those miriatmble 10 cash and
cash equivalans

+ Heulized fair value adjustment (market-to-market gains) of financl
irestruments i falr vulue through peofi o s (FY TPL)

# Reafized falr value gain ol Emestment Pruperty

* Other realfzed gaing or adjustiicnts W refained camings & o resah of
certzin Iransactinns seecunied for undir the FFRS

{3,303,173)

v Siak-loiad




RECONCILIATION OF RETAINED EARNINGS AV AILARLE FOR IVIDEND DECLARATION
For the Feportiog Perind Ended December 31, 2023

CUALODPING SECURITIES CORPORATHON
Unit i1 Level 3 Ayala Malls Chremit. Hipsslromn Street Circoil Makadl, Brgy, Csrmoss Makat ity

Add:  Category C3: Unnealized inrose recognized in e prsfin or
Inss in prior reporling perieds bt reverisd in the correst
reporting perind (nel of ax)
¢ Heveral ol previously recorded Forelgn exchengs gpain, ceepl those
mitresmblke o Gash and cash equivelents o
* Reverml of previously mesondal Fair value sdiusmen: (ke so-markel
gains] ol financial instrumenis of fair vabee threuph profi oo loss
(FATPL -
+ Beversnl e previously mxorded Tair vabee gain of Investment Propery -

-
Ritversal of other unrealized gaing or adjusiments Lo netained eamings as
a result of cenizin irensnctons necounied for under the PTRS -
& Buh-total x

Adjusted Met Income {1Lasss) (663 202

Adds  Category [ Mon-setual losse: recognized in profit or lass
duging tke reporling perked (wed of dax)
# Depreczalion on revaluation imcrement {oiker s .
v Hib-tnnal -

Adid L Category E: Adjustments velated do reliel granted by SEC
and ESF
» Amortizmeion of the effect of repoding nalief 4
* Total amournd of reporting reliel grasted during the yeer =
= {Hhors .
= Hib-tial T

Add'Less: Categery F: (ither items that should be excluded From the

dedermination of the amouwst avallable Fer dividends destribution

+ et movement of broasury shares (except for resequisilion ol red cemable
shires) -

*+ Poel rwervean ] ol dulizrmad w asset pot consdened I e meconsifeg
items under the previous crlepories iy

* Mul movement in deferned way asset and deferrod fax liabilities related 1o
&ne transslion, &, sel up of right of use of gssc and ki ligbility, st
up of 38540 and asset retirement ohlipeton, sl ss-up ol sorvice
conorsson wsel md comoession pavahle

* Adjustment dus w devition from PFR3FGAAT - gain (loss)

v [Nhers 2

v Salspnal =

TUTAL RETAINED EARNINGS, END OF THE REPORTING PERIOD
AVAILABLE FOR DIVIDEND DECLARATION F 17
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